Open Agenda oafhw“’K .

Council
Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Tuesday 7 May 2013
6.00 pm
Ground Floor Meeting Room GO1A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH
Membership Reserves
Councillor Catherine Bowman (Chair) Councillor Kevin Ahern
Councillor Dan Garfield (Vice-Chair) Councillor James Barber
Councillor Neil Coyle Councillor Nick Dolezal
Councillor Toby Eckersley Councillor Rebecca Lury
Councillor Gavin Edwards Councillor Tim McNally
Councillor David Hubber Councillor Abdul Mohamed
Councillor Lorraine Lauder MBE Councillor Lisa Rajan
Councillor Paul Noblet Councillor Lewis Robinson
Councillor David Noakes Councillor Martin Seaton
Councillor The Right Revd Emmanuel Oyewole  Councillor Cleo Soanes
Councillor Mark Williams Councillor Geoffrey Thornton

Co-opted Members

Reverend Nicholas Elder

Colin Elliott, Parent Governor
Leticia Ojeda, Parent Governor
Jeremy Leach, Walworth Society

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information

You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as well as
the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.

Babysitting/Carers allowances

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an elderly
dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting, you may claim an
allowance from the council. Please collect a claim form at the meeting.

Access

Details on building access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s
web site: www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.

Contact
Peter Roberts on 020 7525 4350 or email: peter.roberts@southwark.gov.uk

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting

Eleanor Kelly "
Chief Executive ‘
Date: 26 April 2013

PRINTED ON
RECYCLED PAPER



outhoreK

Council

Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Tuesday 7 May 2013
6.00 pm
Ground Floor Meeting Room GO1A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

Order of Business

Item No. Title Page No.
PART A - OPEN BUSINESS

1. APOLOGIES

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR
DEEMS URGENT

In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an agenda
within five clear working days of the meeting.

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

Members to declare any interests and dispensations in respect of any item
of business to be considered at this meeting.

4. MINUTES 1-5

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the open section of the
meeting held on 15 April 2013.

5. GATEWAY TO PECKHAM - PUBLIC SQUARE AND STATION 6-22
REGENERATION

6. BUSINESS MIX ON WALWORTH ROAD 23 -87



Item No. Title Page No.

Presentations:

- Suzanne Hall (LSE)

- Liz Peace (British Property Federation)

- Elizabeth Cox (New Economics Foundation)

Briefings attached:

- LSE Cities, Future of London's Town Centres

- NEF, Reimagining the High Street

- Health Safety Licensing & Environmental Protection Unit
Manager, Potential for Saturation Policies in Respect of

Licensed Betting Shops

- CAB, Payday Loan Case Studies

DISCUSSION OF ANY OTHER OPEN ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT THE
START OF THE MEETING.

PART B - CLOSED BUSINESS

DISCUSSION OF ANY CLOSED ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START
OF THE MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT.



Item No. Title Page No.

Date: 26 April 2013



’
Open Agenda Agenda Item 4

ortheerK.

Council

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee held on Monday 15 April 2013 at
7.00 pm at 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

PRESENT: Councillor Catherine Bowman (Chair)
Councillor Dan Garfield (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Neil Coyle
Councillor Toby Eckersley
Councillor Gavin Edwards
Councillor David Hubber
Councillor Lorraine Lauder MBE
Councillor Paul Noblet
Councillor David Noakes
Councillor The Right Revd Emmanuel Oyewole
Councillor Mark Williams

ALSO PRESENT: Patrick Blunt, Business Extra

Jeremy Leach, The Walworth Society
OFFICER Shelley Burke, Head of Overview & Scrutiny
SUPPORT: Norman Coombe, Legal Services

Tim Cutts, Team Leader Planning Policy
Barbara-Ann Overwater, Senior Planning Policy Officer
Peter Roberts, Scrutiny Project Manager

APOLOGIES

1.1 There were no apologies for absence.

NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT
21 There were no late items of business.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

3.1 There were no disclosures of interests or dispensations.

1

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 15 April 2013




MINUTES

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meetings of the committee held on 4 February and
11 March 2013 be agreed as a true and accurate record.

BUSINESS MIX ON WALWORTH RD

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

Jeremy Leach, Chair of the Walworth Society, and a colleague addressed
the committee and circulated a written submission. He highlighted the issue
of anti-social behaviour in the vicinity of certain types of business, adding
that the Youth Council had attended the Walworth Community Council and
drawn attention to this. His colleague emphasised that gaming and betting
shops did not go out of business in the same way as other local shops and
therefore had a long term impact on an area.

A member of the committee suggested that Mr Leach be co-opted onto the
committee in order to participate in the scrutiny review. The chair and vice-
chair formally agreed to this proposal.

RESOLVED:

That Jeremy Leach, Chair of the Walworth Society, be co-opted onto the
committee for the duration of the scrutiny review of the business mix on
Walworth Road.

The committee noted the map showing the current business mix on the
Walworth Road and felt that it would be useful to show food outlets on the
map. Some members felt that it would be interesting to know whether
residents shopped locally.

A member commented that the regeneration of the Heygate, Aylesbury and
Elephant and Castle would dramatically change the Walworth Road in as
little as two years. He also commented that a lot of street drinking took
place outside gaming shops but that he had experienced difficulties in
objecting to planning applications for such businesses. The member felt
that other boroughs such as Newham and Hackney, took a different
approach and that Southwark needed to seek out best practice.

Members were concerned at the proliferation of pay-day loan shops. The
representatives from the Walworth Society suggested that a shop-front
could be given to a credit union. They also reported the existence of a
homework shop.

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 15 April 2013




5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

Councillor David Noakes drew attention to the recommendations of the
scrutiny review of unemployment, undertaken by the former Regeneration
Scrutiny Sub-Committee. These covered the importance of the public
realm, how to create a night-time environment and the theming of high
streets. Mr Leach responded that the improvement of Walworth Road as a
public realm had been a fantastic success but that there was a problem
around the Gateway Estate. He agreed that the cultural diversity of the
Walworth Road could be made more of.

A member was concerned that pop-up shops in portacabins did not improve
the appearance of the area. Mr Leach indicated that the developer had
been invited to the next Walworth Society meeting. The member wondered
about the ownership of the retail premises on the Walworth Road and
whether it would be useful to get a clear picture of this. He asked whether
the regeneration of the Elephant and Castle shopping centre was a threat or
an opportunity for the Walworth Road. Jeremy Leach believed that it could
be an opportunity but that Walworth Road needed to attract people from the
Elephant and Castle. He also commented that the developer Lendlease
was planning an independent shopping street to the East of Walworth Road,
which would have an additional impact.

Patrick Blunt of Business Extra, established on the Walworth Road since
2003, addressed the committee. He stressed the tremendous diversity of
the area which included not just Walworth Road but also East Street,
Pullens Yard and other shopping areas. Mr Blunt explained that Business
Extra regularly counted footfall along Walworth Road, which was highest
around Morrisons supermarket and lowest around the Jamaican bakery. In
October of last year there were some 180 business premises along the
Walworth Road, including offices, with a relatively low vacancy rate.
Recently, sales had started to fall off.

In response to questions, Mr Blunt stated that there was a concentration of
betting shops in the middle of the Walworth Road, which might lead to a fall
in the quality of the shopping area. He also commented on the loss of
shoppers from the Heygate estate and emphasised the key role of East
Street in drawing shoppers to the area. The vice-chair stressed the
importance of understanding the impact of the regeneration of the Aylesbury
Estate which would lead to a higher population and growth in demand. A
member of the committee added that a variety of shops and special events
were needed to draw shoppers back to East Street. Another member
suggested that consultation would help to determine what people would like
to see around the market and commented that there seemed to be a
demand for pop-up shops.

In response to further questions, Mr Blunt explained that there was little
confidence in starting up new businesses, not helped by the increase in
3

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 15 April 2013




5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

business rates on the Walworth Road, higher energy costs and rent
increases. At the same time, relatively few businesses were available for
changing hands. Mr Blunt also reported that the local business association
was not well attended, perhaps because many owners of businesses no
longer lived locally, and that rateable values were not high enough to
support a business improvement district.

Tim Cutts, Team Leader Planning Policy, and Barbara-Ann Overwater,
Senior Planning Policy Officer presented a briefing to the committee. They
clarified that the A2 use class covered a range of uses which included
betting shops. It was difficult to restrict just one use within a class.
Members asked whether issuing an Article 4 Planning Direction would be a
practical option. The officers explained that this was a long process
involving consultation, precise boundary definition and possibly
compensation for loss of permitted development rights. It might be more
helpful for betting shops to be allocated their own use class. The chair
wondered if it would be a positive move to support Hackney’s proposal for
betting shops to have a separate use class and whether, in addition, it could
be useful for Southwark to explore an Article 4 Direction. Officers explained
that Southwark had supported a specific use class for betting shops in
response to previous government consultations but that this had not been
taken up.

A member asked whether it would be possible to introduce a hierarchy of
preferred uses if retail was not possible, for instance to say that if A1 was
not possible then the next preferences would be for A3, de-use and only
then A2. Officers indicated that this could be explored but might be difficult
to justify to a planning inspector. Members also asked whether other
boroughs had different approaches towards betting shops that Southwark
could follow.

In response to questions about the speed with which the council was able to
respond to what local communities might want, officers explained the extent
of consultation required in respect of supplementary planning documents
and area action plans. They also emphasised the innovative policies
introduced into the Elephant and Castle Supplementary Planning
Document, including around hot food takeaways and affordable retail space.

The committee agreed to continue the review at its next meeting and to
request the following:

- an amended map of Walworth Road including the position of food
outlets

- any information on ownership of premises (particularly the extent of
council ownership)

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 15 April 2013




- a briefing note on Article 4 Directions (including legal comments)
- a briefing note on the council’s saturation policy in licensing
- any officer views in respect of implementing a hierarchy of uses

- how to pick up on best practice in other authorities and officer views in
respect of supporting the Hackney campaign

- any views that can be provided by SASBU, Metropolitan Police and
Safer Neighbourhood Ward Panels as to whether they think problems
are caused in the areas around betting shops etc

- any problems the CAB has encountered in respect of pay-day loan
shops in Southwark

The meeting ended at 9.10 pm

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 15 April 2013




Agenda ltem 5

Item No: Classification: | Date: Meeting Name:
OPEN 7 May 2013 Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Report Title: Call-in: Gateway to Peckham — public square and

station regeneration

Ward(s) or Group affected: The Lane

Head of Overview & Scrutiny

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

On 20 November 2012 the Cabinet considered a report setting out the steps
taken and planned to develop an investment programme to ensure sufficient
quality primary school places in the short and medium term.

The Cabinet agreed:

That the progress made to date be noted.

That officers be instructed to commence negotiation with all interested parties in
the area.

That the director of regeneration be authorised:

a) To approve the detailed provisions and requirements of a business
engagement package in consultation with the cabinet members for
regeneration and corporate strategy and communities and economic
wellbeing.

b) To prepare and report back to cabinet at the earliest opportunity on a land
information and assembly strategy, which would include:

i. Continued engagement and negotiations to acquire all interests and
approve agreements with landowners of land within the area shown in
Appendix 1 of the report

ii. Undertake referencing and/or obtain further information using requisitions
under the Acquisition of Land Act 1981

ii. Amend the boundaries of the areas edged in bold and shown in Appendix
1 of the report should it be required

iv. Enter into agreement with Network Rail for the Gateway to Peckham
project.

REASONS FOR CALL-IN

On 24™ April 2012 the Chair of Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Councillor
Cathy Bowman - and four members of the committee (Councillors Toby
Eckersley, David Hubber, David Noakes and Paul Noblet ) requested a call-in of
the decisions on the following grounds:

¢ failure to maintain the link between strategy and implementation - the
scheme that officers discussed with Peckham Vision stakeholders




differed significantly from the scheme presented in the report.
Specifically, stakeholders claimed that the area for development outlined
in the report was not the same as the one that had been discussed with
officers.

e due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers -
Peckham Vision representatives gave evidence at Cabinet that they had
had "18 months of unsatisfactory" meetings with officers. The Director of
Regeneration (Steve Platts) acknowledged that there were problems with
the report, apologising "for some of the language".

CALL-IN MEETING
4. The committee will consider the call-in request and whether or not the decision
might be contrary to the policy framework or not wholly in accordance with the

budget.

5. If, having considered the decision and all relevant advice, the committee is still
concerned about it then it may either:

a) refer it back to the decision making person or body for reconsideration,
setting out in writing the nature of its concerns, or

b)  Refer the matter to council assembly if the decision is deemed to be outside
the policy and budget framework.

6. If the committee does not refer the matter back to the decision making person or
body, the decision shall take effect on the date of the scrutiny meeting.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held at Contact

Report to Cabinet 16 April 160 Tooley Street Paula Thornton

2013 London SE1 2TZ Constitutional Team
020 7525 4395

APPENDICES

Cabinet Report

Audit Trail

Lead Officer | Shelley Burke, Head of Overview & Scrutiny

Report Author

Version | Final

Dated | 25 April 2013

Key Decision? | No

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / EXECUTIVE
MEMBER

Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included




Item No. | Classification: | Date: Meeting Name:
12. Open 16 April 2013 Cabinet
Report title: Gateway to Peckham - Public Square and Station
Regeneration
Ward: The Lane
Cabinet member: Councillor Fiona Colley, Regeneration and Corporate
Strategy

FOREWORD - COUNCILLOR FIONA COLLEY, CABINET MEMBER FOR
REGENERATION AND CORPORATE STRATEGY

Working alongside our partners, Peckham Vision, Network Rail, the GLA and Southern
Railways, we have been making good progress with improvement works at Peckham
Rye Station. Passenger waiting arrangements have been improved, the windows have
been unbricked on the southern tower, we will shortly have a new cycle parking hub
and the station is back in the Access for All Programme to provide step free access to
train services.

There has also been a great deal of work going on to progress plans for the new
Peckham Rye Station Square project and we are now ready to commence
negotiations with the businesses to acquire the many existing leases and sub-leases
so that the existing run down buildings can be removed and replaced with new high
quality public realm and retail units.

Whilst this project will undoubtedly be of great benefit to the overall economic
wellbeing of Rye Lane and the surrounding area, approximately 60 businesses
currently based within the regeneration area will be displaced - many of them small
independent and BME businesses. Council officers are already in regular contact with
many of these businesses, but in addition to instructing officers to start negotiations |
am also recommending that a business engagement and support package is
developed by the director of regeneration in consultation with myself and the cabinet
member for communities and economic wellbeing to ensure these local entrepreneurs
are kept fully informed and given appropriate support to help them take the right
decisions about the future of their businesses.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the cabinet:

1. Notes the progress made to date.

2. Instructs officers to commence negotiation with interested parties and notes the

council is taking active steps to secure the vacant possession of the area shown
in Appendix 1.



Authorises the director of regeneration

a) To approve the detailed provisions and requirements of a business
engagement package in consultation with the cabinet members for
regeneration and corporate strategy and communities and economic
wellbeing.

b)  To prepare and implement a land information and assembly strategy, which
would include:

i. Continued engagement and negotiations to acquire all interests and
approve agreements with landowners of land within the area shown in
Appendix 1

ii. Undertake referencing and/or obtain further information using
requisitions under the Acquisition of Land Act 1981

ii. Amend the boundaries of the areas edged in bold and shown in
Appendix 1 should it be required

iv. Enter into agreement with Network Rail for the Gateway to Peckham
project

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

4.

The Gateway to Peckham project is the centre piece of the regeneration
programme in Peckham and will be a catalyst for further investment leading to
the achievement of the vision in the Peckham and Nunhead Area Action Plan
(PNAAP). It is anticipated that this draft plan will be submitted for examination by
the Secretary of State later in 2013.

On the 17 April 2012, the cabinet approved that the council enter a grant
agreement with the Greater London Authority (GLA) to deliver the project as part
of the Mayor’s Regeneration Fund.

The project objectives include opening out the area in front of the station into a
new public space and improving the arches and area to the rear of the station to
increase economic activity and it is anticipated that it will be delivered over a four
year period.

The project will deliver an attractive point of arrival forming an anchor in the
middle of the town centre, promote new active uses and be the catalyst for
further investment. With a number of vacant, redundant or under-utilised spaces
(especially within the station envelope) bringing these back into productive and
viable use is fundamental to supporting the regeneration of the area

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

Improvements to Peckham Rye Station

8.

Southern Railways completed improvement works to the station including
improved passenger waiting arrangements. These works were completed ahead
of the opening of the London Overground service on 10 December 2012.

Works have now been completed to the opening of the windows in the southern
tower, exposing the stairs and decorative ironwork. This work has been led by
Peckham Vision.



10.

11.

12.

10

Funding was granted for the creation of a cycle parking hub in April 2012, with
permission secured in late December 2012. Works are now progressing and are
due for completion by May 2013. Permission has been granted and works are
continuing to bring the northern retail unit back into use.

Network Rail have secured the reinstatement of Peckham Rye Station on the
Access for All programme (to provide step-free access) and option development
commenced in late February 2013.

To ensure the protection of the station’s heritage through the range of proposed
works, a conservation management plan will be developed for the station. In
addition a structural survey of the floor to determine possible interventions in the
former Billiard Room/Old Waiting Room is being progressed.

Engagement with the business community

13.

14.

15.

16.

There are approximately 60 businesses which are likely to be affected by the
station regeneration project, including around 30 at the front of the station and a
similar number in the rear arches. In July 2012, the council hand delivered
letters to all businesses within the area shown in Appendix 1.

An engagement and support programme will be put in place for landowners and
businesses directly affected by the station regeneration and the possibility of a
temporary alternative business site will be explored.

Local businesses not directly affected by the station project will be kept informed
and engaged with the project through a communications strategy to be prepared
with Network Rail.

The council is also engaged in wider initiatives in the Rye Lane area that impact
on businesses, which will be taken into account, including the Community
Restoration Fund, Townscape Heritage Initiative, Pocket Places and the new
Business Support Fund.

Creation of station square

17.

18.

19.

20.

Since April 2012 officers have been progressing the project and in December
2012, the council entered into a grant agreement with the GLA.

Officers have been developing an understanding of interests included within the
Network Rail owned property outlined in proposal site 6 of the draft PNAAP and
as shown in Appendix 1.

In support of the creation of the new station square, a high level assessment of
future massing and supporting active uses has been prepared and used to
inform the business case. Network Rail’'s investment panel are due to consider
the Gateway to Peckham project in April 2013.

At this investment panel meeting, it is anticipated that Network Rail will support
the development of the scheme, necessitating the need to formalise a working
arrangement with Network Rail to bring greater coherence and surety to the
regeneration, and provide greater delivery certainty. To ensure the interests of
the council and Network Rail are protected it is proposed to develop heads of
terms leading to the preparation of an agreement between the two organisations.



11

This agreement is expected to cover, amongst other things:
Preparation and approval of a planning application
Business relocation strategy

Design and construction

Land acquisition

Ongoing maintenance and responsibilities

Poo T

Community impact statement

21.

22.

23.

Gateway to Peckham forms a key component in delivering the aspirations and
visions of the draft PNAAP. It is envisaged that investment and improvements to
Peckham Rye Station and surrounds will have a positive long term impact.

There will need to be further extensive consultation with the current business
occupiers and with key stakeholders involved in the project. An equalities impact
statement will be prepared as the project develops which will assist the council in
understanding the needs of the current occupiers and identifying any key
concerns or barriers to our services for different groups of people; and anticipate
and avoid potential difficulties for some people and work to remove or mitigate
them.

The council will ensure that all interests, regardless of age, disability, faith/
religion, gender, race, and ethnicity or sexual orientation will be treated fairly and
equally throughout negotiations, and where appropriate, they will be offered
financial and business support as well as being advised of their legal rights in
accordance with statutory principles and council policy.

Policy implications

24.

Gateway to Peckham forms a key component in delivering the aspirations and
visions of the draft PNAAP. The confirmed policies and actions relating to
regeneration and economic prosperity are consistent with the council’s economic
wellbeing strategy as well as the council’s broader policy framework.

Consultation

25.

26.

As part of the consultation of the draft PNAAP, issues and options, the council
asked the community if they would want to see a square in front of Peckham Rye
Station, 86% of respondents were in favour.

Extensive consultation will be undertaken in the delivery of the project, with the
affected businesses, local stakeholders and wider community.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Legal Services

27.

28.

The intention is to assist in the regeneration of Peckham Rye station which will
contribute to the council's aim of promoting and improving the economic,
environmental and social well-being of the area around the station.

The purpose of this report is to ensure that the council continues with a process
towards landowners and occupiers which is open and treats the persons affected
with due respect. Carrying out consultation is an important part of this process to
ensure that any misunderstandings concerning the process are removed as far



12

as possible.

29. Officers will enter into negotiations with those with a legal interest in part of the
land affected. If the market value of any such interest exceeds £100,000, then
the specific acquisition will need to be authorised by cabinet. Authority is also
sought to exercise formal information gathering powers where required.

Strategic Director of Finance & Corporate Services (FC13/021)

30. The strategic director of finance & corporate services notes the progress made to
date and that the negotiation and preparation of strategies can be contained
within existing resources.

31. There are no new costs associated with this report. Any subsequent decisions

arising from the regeneration programme will be brought to the relevant decision
maker with full financial implications clearly identified.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Background Papers Held At Contact

Cabinet Report - Approval to enter http://moderngov.southwark. | Sally Crew
grant agreement with the GLA for the |gov.uk/mglssueHistoryHom |020 7525 5564
Gateway to Peckham Project — April |e.aspx?lld=18556

2012

APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix 1 The site
AUDIT TRAIL

Cabinet Member | Councillor Fiona Colley, Regeneration and Corporate Strategy

Lead Officer | Eleanor Kelly, Chief Executive

Report Author | Sally Crew, Group manager, Policy and Programmes

Version | Final

Dated | 4 April 2013

Key Decision? | Yes

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET

MEMBER
Officer Title Comments Sought | Comments Included
Director of Legal Services Yes Yes
Strategic Director of finance & Yes Yes
Corporate Services
Cabinet Member Yes Yes
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 4 April 2013




Appendix One - Gateway to Peckham_area

4/4/2013

[)
=
©
(a]

Scale 1/1500




14

outhoreeK.

Council

Cabinet

MINUTES of the OPEN section of the Cabinet held on Tuesday 16 April 2013 at
4.00 pm at the Council Offices, 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

PRESENT: Councillor Peter John (Chair)
Councillor lan Wingfield
Councillor Fiona Colley
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle
Councillor Barrie Hargrove
Councillor Claire Hickson
Councillor Richard Livingstone
Councillor Catherine McDonald
Councillor Veronica Ward

APOLOGIES
All members were present.
NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT

The chair gave notice that the following late items would be considered for reasons of
urgency, to be specified in the relevant minute:

Item 8 — Deputation requests

Item 21 — Lakanal Inquiry: Coroner’s recommendations

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO CONDUCT BUSINESS IN A CLOSED MEETING, AND
ANY REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED

No representations were received.
DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

None were declared.

Cabinet - Tuesday 16 April 2013




5.

15

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)

Public question from Matthew Egan

1.

The following public question was asked by Matthew Egan to Councillor Catherine
McDonald, cabinet member for health and adult social care:

“Is the cabinet aware of the damaging impact that zero hour contracts can have on
both care standards for those people receiving homecare services in Southwark and
on the workers providing it?"

Response by Councillor Catherine McDonald

“l recognise the potential impact and uncertainly that the use of 'zero hours'
contracts can have for homecare workers - for example on their hours and income -
and that 'zero hours' contracts along with many other factors can affect the quality of
care provided.

| want to work towards eliminating providers' use of zero hours contracts to help
front-line workers and to help in the quality of provision.

| want to thank Unison for providing its helpful ethical home care charter highlighting
this issue. That is why | am asking cabinet to agree to create a task and finish group
(with Unison and stakeholders' input) to support the implementation of principles of
the charter (including those relating to the three outstanding areas and report back in
Autumn 2013. | hope to be able to make firm commitments on each of the areas
after receiving that report, subject to the results of that feasibility work.”

Public question from Sue Plain

2.

The following public question was asked by Sue Plain to Councillor Catherine
McDonald, cabinet member for health and adult social care:

“Can the council confirm that they have tested the contracts of employment issued to
home care workers employed by London Care, Enara and other home care
Agencies to determine whether they meet the "mutual obligation" criteria? If not,
would you say on what grounds the council has described them as "permanent
contracts" in the report "developing a quality strategy and best practice principles for
home care services: initial review of Unison's ethical care charter.”

Response by Councillor Catherine McDonald

“The council has not reviewed each and every contract of employment in place
between the many hundreds of home care workers employed by private sector
providers and the wide range of other providers who operate in the borough, but |
am aware that there will be many different arrangements.

| understand the reference to permanent contracts within the report (see paragraphs
53 and 54 of the report) sets out the council's interpretation of the principle of stage
2 of the charter that "zero hours" contracts will not be used in place of permanent

2

Cabinet - Tuesday 16 April 2013




16

contracts. The report makes no comment on whether employment contracts used by
our local providers are permanent or not.

Home care workers provide a crucial service and we need to ensure they have fair
terms and conditions. Zero hours contracts of employment create uncertainty for
home care workers; their hours and income can fluctuate week to week. This is why
| am asking officers to set up a task and finish group with input from Unison and
stakeholders to look at the feasibility of all the options available to reduce the use of
zero hours contracts.”

MINUTES

RESOLVED:

That the open minutes of the meeting held on 19 March 2013 be approved as a
correct record and signed by the chair.

PETITION - REDUCE AIR POLLUTION

The petition spokesperson addressed the meeting to outline concerns from residents' of
the borough in respect of air pollution on main roads near schools with particular reference
to the detrimental impact upon the health of children and the general community. The
spokesperson asked the council to roll out the clean air for schools initiative, sign all
schools up to the airtext service, the provision of a dedicated budget to the environmental
protection team for air quality improvement initiatives, and to work closely with Transport
for London (TfL) to reduce air pollution.

RESOLVED:

That a report is received by cabinet in three months to assess progress made, with
specific reference to resources within the public health budget and measures to
promote engagement with schools.

DEPUTATION REQUESTS

This item had not be circulated five clear days in advance of the meeting. The chair
agreed to accept the item as urgent as the requests had been submitted in line with the
constitutional deadline for the receipt of deputation requests and were therefore eligible for
consideration by cabinet.

RESOLVED:
That the deputation requests be heard.
Southwark home care workers

The deputation spokesperson addressed the meeting in respect of an item on the cabinet
agenda “Developing a quality strategy and best practice principles for home care services;

3

Cabinet - Tuesday 16 April 2013




10.

17

initial review of Unison’s ethical care charter.” The deputation reported that while they
were grateful for the introduction of the London living wage there still remained some
issues of concern relating to zero contract hours, including sickness and travel time. As
well as the impact on home care workers these concerns were felt to potentially impact on
the continuity of care with clients (especially when a client suffers dementia). The
deputation requested that Unison and home care workers be included on the task and
finish group.

Peckham Vision and businesses in Holly Grove and Blenheim Grove

The deputation spokesperson addressed the meeting in respect of an item on the cabinet
agenda “Gateway to Peckham — public square and station regeneration”. The deputation
raised concerns about the impact the regeneration would have on properties and business
in the immediate area. The deputation which comprised a number of businesses and
residents to represent these concerns asked that the decision be deferred in order that
their concerns relating the proposals before cabinet could be discussed before a decision
was made. Particular concern was expressed in respect of recommendation 2 of the
report.

REPORT INTO TRA HALLS AND COMMUNAL ROOMS (HOUSING, ENVIRONMENT,
TRANSPORT AND COMMUNITY SAFETY SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE)

Councillor Gavin Edwards, chair of the housing, environment, transport and community
safety scrutiny sub-committee presented the report to cabinet.

RESOLVED:

That the recommendations of the review of tenants and resident association (TRA)
halls and communal rooms be noted, and that the deputy leader and cabinet
member for housing management bring back a report to cabinet, in order to
respond to the overview and scrutiny committee, within eight weeks.

ACCESS TO MATERNAL HEALTH AND EARLY YEARS SERVICES FOR THE GYPSY
AND TRAVELLER COMMUNITIES (HEALTH, ADULT SOCIAL CARE, COMMUNITIES
& CITIZENSHIP SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE)

Councillor Mark Edwards, chair of the health, adult social care, communities and
citizenship scrutiny sub-committee presented the report to cabinet.

RESOLVED:

1. That the recommendations of overview & scrutiny committee, in respect of provision
of travellers’ sites and funding of Southwark Travellers Action Group, as set out at
paragraph 9 of the report be noted.

2.  That the recommendations of the review of access to maternal health and early
years services for the gypsy and traveller communities in Southwark, and that the
relevant cabinet members bring back a report to cabinet, in order to respond to the
overview and scrutiny committee, within eight weeks.

4

Cabinet - Tuesday 16 April 2013




11.

18

DEVELOPING A QUALITY STRATEGY AND BEST PRACTICE PRINCIPLES FOR
HOME CARE SERVICES: INITIAL REVIEW OF UNISON'S ETHICAL CARE CHARTER

RESOLVED:

Decisions of the Cabinet

1.

That the key objectives of the UNISON ethical care charter and steps already
being taken by the council to meet these objectives, including the prior commitment
to introduce the London living wage (LLW) for all new contracts be noted.

That the council’s aspiration to develop an approach to commissioning high quality
home care services which fully embraces the principles of the charter be confirmed
and the key milestones including the aim to implement LLW for existing home care
contract in July 2013 be noted and it also be noted that the current contracts run
until summer 2014.

That the strategic director of children’s and adults services establish a task and
finish group to develop a commissioning approach for Southwark that supports the
council’s aspiration to implement the principles of the charter — including those
relating to the three outstanding areas — zero hours contracts, payment for travel
time, occupational sickness schemes - subject to affordability, contractual
commitments and with reference to the demands of personalised budgets. That
Unison, home care users and providers be included on the task and finish group.
That it be noted that the task and finish group will be required to report back on
progress, feasibility, plans and affordability analysis to the cabinet in November
2013.

That the continual intention of the council to establish a reference group of key
stakeholders, Unison and home care users and providers to have strong and
regular input to the task and finish group be noted, including Unison, users and
providers to inform the commissioning approach, including a set of best practice
principles to inform the commissioning approach to home care services which are,
as far as is practical, consistent with the ethical charter.

That the work currently underway to develop a training partnership with home care
providers focused on developing the skills and quality of the home care workforce
be noted.

Decisions of the Leader of the Council

6.

That the cabinet member for health and adult social care be given delegated
authority to approve any contract variation to existing home care contracts to
implement LLW, taking account of legal and procurement advice and the
incorporation of measures to ensure enhanced quality and performance is linked to
payment of LLW.

Cabinet - Tuesday 16 April 2013




12.

13.

14.

19

GATEWAY TO PECKHAM - PUBLIC SQUARE AND STATION REGENERATION

RESOLVED:

1.

2.

That the progress made to date be noted.

That officers be instructed to commence negotiation with all interested parties in the
area.

That the director of regeneration be authorised:

a) To approve the detailed provisions and requirements of a business
engagement package in consultation with the cabinet members for
regeneration and corporate strategy and communities and economic wellbeing.

b) To prepare and report back to cabinet at the earliest opportunity on a land
information and assembly strategy, which would include:

i. Continued engagement and negotiations to acquire all interests and
approve agreements with landowners of land within the area shown in
Appendix 1 of the report

ii. Undertake referencing and/or obtain further information using requisitions
under the Acquisition of Land Act 1981

iii. Amend the boundaries of the areas edged in bold and shown in Appendix 1
of the report should it be required

iv. Enter into agreement with Network Rail for the Gateway to Peckham
project.

MANOR PLACE DEPOT, OCCUPATION ROAD, WALWORTH, LONDON SE17 3BE -
DISPOSAL OF FREEHOLD INTEREST

RESOLVED:

1.

That the head of property be authorised to dispose of the council’s freehold interest
in Manor Place Depot, Occupation Rd, SE17 (the “property”), on the terms outlined
in the closed version of the report.

That the resulting capital receipt be recycled into the council’s capital programme.

That the head of property agree any minor variations to the terms of the sale, with
the purchaser, which may arise prior to completion of the transaction or alternatively
to agree terms with any of the under bidders subject to best consideration
requirements if in the unlikely event the original offer fails to progress to completion.

DISPOSAL OF 91-99 ATHENLAY ROAD, LONDON SE15

RESOLVED:

1.

That the head of property be authorised to dispose of the council’s freehold interest
6

Cabinet - Tuesday 16 April 2013




15.

16.

20

in 91-99 Athenlay Road (“the land”), on the terms outlined in the closed version of
the report.

That authority be delegated to the head of property to agree any minor variations to
the terms agreed with the proposed purchaser which may arise prior to the
completion of the transaction or alternatively agree terms with any of the under
bidders subject to best consideration requirements if in the unlikely event that the
original offer fails to progress to completion.

DISPOSAL OF 236 & 240 LORDSHIP LANE, LONDON SE22

RESOLVED:

1.

That the disposal of the council’s freehold interest in land at 236 and 240 Lordship
Lane SE22 (“the land”) for a residential development be approved on the following
terms and conditions:

a. That the head of property be authorised to agree any variations to these terms
that may be necessary to achieve the successful disposal of 236 & 240
Lordship Lane SE22.

b. That in the unlikely event that this recommended disposal does not proceed to
exchange of contract, the head of property be authorised to agree the terms of
a disposal with any one of the under bidders set out in the closed report and/or
any other third party, subject to best consideration or market value
requirements.

c. The capital receipt from the sale of the property is recycled into the housing
investment programme.

ST. OLAV'S PUBLIC CONVENIENCE SITE, ALBION STREET RESOLUTION TO MAKE
COMPULSORY PURCHASE ORDER FOR SITE ASSEMBLY PURPOSES

RESOLVED:

1.

That the council makes a compulsory purchase order under Section 226(1) of the
Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended by section 99 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004) for the acquisition of the freehold interest in the
land shown edged on the plan attached at Appendix 1 to the report for the purposes
of securing the redevelopment of St Olav’s square as part of the wider Albion street
regeneration and in line with the aspirations of the Canada Water Area Action Plan
(AAP).

That the director of regeneration be authorised to:

a) Take all necessary steps to secure the making, confirmation and
implementation of the compulsory purchase order including the publication and
service of notices and the presentation of the council’s case at public inquiry
should one be called.

Cabinet - Tuesday 16 April 2013




17.

21.

18.

19.

21

b) To acquire the freehold interest in the land within the compulsory purchase
order either by agreement or compulsorily for the purposes of redeveloping St
Olav’s Square as part of the wider Albion Street regeneration.

HOUSING AND COMMUNITY SERVICES REPORT BACK ON DECIMA STREET
TENANTS AND RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION DEPUTATION

RESOLVED:

That the contents of the report be noted.
LAKANAL INQUIRY - CORONER'S RECOMMENDATIONS

The item had not been circulated five clear days in advance of the meeting. The chair
agreed to accept this item as urgent due to the importance of the recommendations and
the requirement for cabinet to consider urgently.

RESOLVED:
That the contents of the report be noted and officers be instructed to provide a full

response to the coroner’s recommendations, to be considered by cabinet at its
meeting of 14 May 2013.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business
on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in
category 3 of paragraph 10.4 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of the
Southwark Constitution.

The following is a summary of the closed part of the meeting.

MANOR PLACE DEPOT, OCCUPATION ROAD, WALWORTH, LONDON SE17 3BE -
DISPOSAL OF FREEHOLD INTEREST

The cabinet considered the closed information relating to this report. See item 13 for
decision.

DISPOSAL OF 91-99 ATHENLAY ROAD, LONDON SE15

The cabinet considered the closed information relating to this report. See item 14 for
decision.

Cabinet - Tuesday 16 April 2013




20.

22

DISPOSAL OF 236 & 240 LORDSHIP LANE, LONDON SE22

The cabinet considered the closed information relating to this report. See item 15 for
decision.

The meeting ended at 6.50pm.

CHAIR:

DATED:

DEADLINE FOR NOTIFICATION OF CALL-IN UNDER SECTION 21 OF THE
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PROCEDURE RULES IS MIDNIGHT, WEDNESDAY 24
APRIL 2013.

THE ABOVE DECISIONS WILL NOT BE IMPLEMENTABLE UNTIL AFTER THAT
DATE. SHOULD A DECISION OF THE CABINET BE CALLED-IN FOR SCRUTINY,
THEN THE RELEVANT DECISION WILL BE HELD IN ABEYANCE PENDING THE
OUTCOME OF SCRUTINY CONSIDERATION.

Cabinet - Tuesday 16 April 2013




23

Agenda ltem 6

B

—Cities

AN INTERNATIONAL CENTRE SUPPORTED BY DEUTSCHE BANK

10 January 2013

Planning Committee
London Assembly
City Hall

The Queen’s Walk
London SE12AA

For the attention of Nicky Gavron, Chair of the London Assembly Planning
Committee

FUTURE OF LONDON’S TOWN CENTRES

Thank you very much for your invitation to explore possible future scenarios
for town centres and to consider future policy options. In responding to the
questions outlined in your letter we draw on our grounded, detailed
knowledge of two particular high streets and town centres: the Walworth
Road area connecting to Elephant and Castle; and Peckham including Rye

Lane. We therefore respond to your questions from the base of centres within

ethnically diverse and comparatively deprived London locations.

Please contact us if you require any further information.

Best wishes,
Y

Dr Suzanne Hall

London School of Economics
and Political Science
Houghton Street

London

WC2A 2AE

United Kingdom

|
Telephone +44 (0)20 7955 7056
Fax: +44 (0)20 7955 7697

Email: s.m.hall@lse.ac.uk
www?2.Ise.ac.uk/Isecities
www.urban-age.net

|
LSE Cities

Dr Suzanne Hall
Research Fellow and Lecturer



24

Future of London’s town centres
Submission to the London Assembly’s Planning Committee

Dr Suzanne Hall, LSE Cities, 10 January 2012

Research background: a different kind of centre?

A team at LSE Cities have been involved in two in-depth studies of two inner London streets and how
they fit within their respective urban centres. The Walworth Road links to the Elephant and Castle,
while Rye Lane is a primary element in Peckham’s town centre. What is instructive about these streets
in the context of the London Assembly’s review of London’s town centres, is that they are
comparatively ‘ordinary’: they fall outside of London’s prestigious landscape. Also of importance, is
that these streets exhibit a relative economic and cultural vibrancy despite being located within areas
with high indices of deprivation. Yet in planning terms, neither of these streets are officially recognised
for their economic and cultural vibrancy; their value is not necessarily legible to the lens of power. We
would therefore like to raise the realities of increases in ethnic and cultural diversity and how these

urban trends have a role to play in the reshaping and planning of some of London’s town centres.

1. What new ideas and existing best practise could help re-imagine and develop
London’s high streets and town centres of the future?

Part of the task of imagining London’s high streets and town centres of the future, is to

understand how its ordinary as well as prestigious urban landscapes are changing. Similarly, it is

crucial to recognise key differences within London’s retail geographies, as well as how these

vary from national ones'. For example, while small independent shops have substantially

! For a recent overview of varied national trends see the presentations from the ‘Expert
Scoping Panel Workshop’, 25-26 September, 2012,
http://www.highstreetfutures.co.uk/events



25

declined across the UK, quite the opposite is true for London* there has been a 78,5% increase in
independent retail in London from 2000 to 2006, a trend that has not been curtailed by the
economic crisis. A primary consideration in the re-imagination of London’s high street and town
centres is therefore to develop a disaggregated view informed by the particular cultural and

economic practices that are distinctive to place.

Across these distinctive streets and centres, a broadly adopted maxim is that the social and
cultural dimensions of high streets and town centres are key to their economic vitality (NEF?,
Portas*). It is crucial within this maxim to adopt the best practice of ‘particularity’: to understand
the failures and successes that are key to urban locality, as well as the new trends associated with
changing economies. The requirement for local authorities to actively engage in the planning of
town centres outlined in Planning Policy Statement 4 includes both the need to audit decline or
growth of existing town centres and to develop a strategic framework for the management and
growth of centres. However, measures of ‘vitality’ and ‘viability’ are frequently based on
economic norms, and in our research experience, the emerging cultures and economies on
Peckham Rye Lane and Walworth Road that grow out of diverse ethnic enterprise, tend to
remain poorly understood in the official assessments of these areas. How audits are conducted,
and by whom, and how changing trends are recognised by appropriate measures of value, is
therefore key to the understanding of particularity and ultimately to the support, planning and

renewal of London’s high streets and town centres.

2 Neil Wrigley, Julia Branson, Andrew Murdoch and Graham Clarke (2009)
‘Extending the Competition Commission’s Findings on Entry and Exit of Small Stores
in Britain’s High Streets: Implications for Competition and Planning Policy’,
Environment and Planning A, 41: 2063-85.

3 New Economics Foundation (2002) Ghost Town Britain: The threat from economic
globalisation to livelihoods, liberty and local economic freedom, London: NEF.

+Mary Portas (2011) The Portas Review: Anindependent review into the future of our high
streets, https:/ /www.gov.uk/.../11-1434-portas-review-future-of-high-streets

5 DCLG, Department for Communities and Local Government, London:

2009a Planning Policy Statement 4: Planning for sustainable economic growth.

2009b Planning for Town Centres: Practice Guidance on need, Impact, and the sequential
approach.




26

2, How can town centres compete in the new age of consumerism and succeed
alongside out-of-town retail?
High streets and town centres in ‘ordinary’ urban settings are often activated by patterns of
convenience - places to buy milk, post a letter and top up an oyster card. These elements of
convenience and day-to-day utilities are essential to their vitality and should not be
underestimated, while complementary activities like GP and dentist surgeries, libraries and
schools all add to the social value. Vibrant and convenient town centres are also able to attract a
number of complementary business activities. The High Street London® report, for example,
recorded 2100 businesses in Peckham Town Centre, and 13,400 employees. By way of

comparison, Westfield Stratford has 300 retail units and 8500 permanent jobs’.

A significant advantage that out-of-town retail centres have is ‘a view of the whole’. Ownership
and management is not often fragmented, and unlike inner city high streets and town centres,
out-of-town retail centres are able to benefit from orchestrated planning and management
strategies. ‘A view of the whole’ needs to be re-established in the planning and management of
high streets and town centres, without necessarily undermining the smaller scale and varied
patterns of ownership and individual endeavour that make for rich and adaptive urban

environments.

3. How can town centres become more accessible and increase footfall to local
shops? What is the role of innovative transport and parking schemes in this
respect?

Urban high streets and town centres in inner London depend on high thresholds of footfall,

largely from people who have not arrived by car. Convenience of access is therefore paramount,

as 1s a density of bus routes with a frequency of stops and the ease of pedestrian passage. The

¢ Gort Scott and UCL (2010) High Street London, Great London Authority, London.

7 http://www.guardian.co.uk/money/2011/may/21/westfield-stratford-city



27

combination of high levels of road-based public transport together with a convenient and
pleasant street environment is in part an urban design concern, and pragmatic but attractive
projects that increase sidewalks, allow for bus movement to be prioritised over cars, and that

allow for designated loading and quick drop offs, all add to the physical ‘usability’ of streets.

The success of a basic design reconfiguration of the street profile is well evidenced in the
‘Walworth Project’,® where sidewalks widths were increased, seating amenities were added,
and bus lanes were privileged, all within an attractive streetscape design. Rather than explicitly
branding the street experience, investment was put into maximising the pragmatic and social
space of the street. If these design measures increase physical accessibility, perceptual
accessibility could be enhanced through using transport infrastructure at bus stops, tube stops
and stations, for a street or centre ‘notice boards’, in either electronic or standard form, and
incorporating basic orienting information, news about the street/centre and social media
platform information including website addresses, twitter hash tags, and app download

information, all increasing e-information about the street/centre.

4. What strategies for regeneration of town centres and high streets would best
encourage growth and prosperity in a time of austerity? How can they unlock
the potential of key development sites in town centres?

In comparatively ordinary streets and centres where investor confidence is not necessarily high,

other means of raising the profile and vitality of streets and centres needs consideration. The

Portas Review® highlights the potentially of ‘pop-up’ shops and generally the ambit of interim use

could certainly be further pursued. Part of the project of interim use is to make value - social,

cultural, and economic - tangible to existing and prospective users. More standard practices in

$ The ‘Walworth Project’ saw an increase in bus patronage and a decrease in parking
ticketing. The project won the ‘Living Streets’ award: http://www.nsl.co.uk/case-

studies/transformation-of-walworth-road

o Ibid.



28

interim use involve markets, pop-up shops, festivals and events of various sorts. But given
London’s immense cultural and institutional wealth and capacity, prospects for innovative
partnerships could be more fully explored and developed: art colleges and business schools, for
example, could ‘adopt a shop’, linking local initiatives and innovations into a wider framework

of testing and promoting the role of London’s streets and centres.

5. How effective are existing planning policies to promote the vitality and
viability of town centres? How can Londoners be encouraged to live in and
populate town centres?

A further, crucial means to increasing footfall and thresholds of support to streets and centres is

to increase residential density within easy walking distances of centres. In Walworth, for

example, the Walworth Road is located within a high density residential area and has
approximately 15,000 people within walking distance or square kilometre of the street, thereby
helping to sustain its retail life (CABE)™: in comparative London terms, the Walworth Road is
surrounded by a less affluent population, but because of the population density in proximity to it,
the total weekly expenditure estimated for the street was £4.3 million compared with £4.8

million on High Street Hampstead.

High streets and centres are also potentially concentrations of public assets such as clinics and
libraries, as well as spaces to meet up. The High Street London™ report reveals that two-thirds of
Londoners live within 500 meters of a high street, and that two-thirds of the trips to the local
street are made to access forms of exchange and interaction other than shopping. In planning
terms, this highlights how both residential and cultural densities are required to sustain the

vitality of high streets and town centres.

1° CABE (2007) Paved with Gold: The real value of good street design.
" ibid.



29

6. What are the powers and mechanisms available to local planning authorities
to revitalise their town centres and stimulate development activity?
The Association of Town Centres Manifesto™ and the Portas Review both highlight the need for the
agile management of high streets and town centres to maintain and update the crucial balance
between large and small operators, permanent and temporary uses, and cultural and economic
activities. As reported to the London Assembly’s Economy Committee® our research at LSE
Cities strongly suggests the need for stewardship. However, a variety of coordination
mechanisms need consideration, as the BID mechanism, while valuable in certain contexts, is
not universally suitable. In ordinary high streets, a range of stewardship issues require
consideration, most explicitly, how proprietors are given a voice, and what role these
individuals, who are economically and intellectually invested in these streets, have in collective
discussions around their street’s current and future vitality. The role of high street and town

centre associations, and their relationship to local authorities, requires further consideration.

7. How can Mayoral planning policy, the London Plan and the emerging Town

Centres SPG, best support town centres?

In summary, this report has outlined three areas for planning consideration in the support of high

streets and town centres:

1) Physical: public transport, including ease of pedestrian access is key to sustaining the convenient

aspect of urban streets and centres. In addition, a density of residential stock within walking distance

of high streets and centres adds to the thresholds of local support.

1) Cultural: as significant as residential density is to the day-to-day activation of streets and centres, so

too is a ‘cultural density’, including hard components like public institutions, and soft or interim

components like events and festivals. A more concerted interim use programme twinned to cultural

and educational institutions could be initiated to focus public interest and imagination more positively

on the role of London’s high streets and town centres.

2 ATCM (2012) Association of Town Centre Management Manifesto, ATCM, London.
1 Suzanne Hall (2012) London’s High streets: Bringing empty shops back into use, LSE
Cities, submitted by invitation to the London Authorities Economy Committee.



30

iii) Managerial: a range of managerial options that have ‘a view of the whole’ need to be explored, and
in particular, the role of local interest groups and proprietors needs to be considered, including an

involvement in the auditing, imagining and management of ordinary streets and centres.

LSE Cities current research on London’s ‘Ordinary Streets’:
http://lsecities.net/objects/research-projects/ordinary-streets

The Ordinary Streets project is an ethnographic and visual exploration of the spaces, economies and
cultures of ‘street’. It engages with the policy and planning of town centres and high streets, and with
issues of ethnic and cultural diversity in the context of global cities. The primary case study is

Peckham Rye Lane, a multi-ethnic street in south London

Publications resulting from this research can found at:
Hall Suzanne (2012) London’s High Streets: Bringing empty shops back into use’, report to the Economy
Committee, London Assembly, 31 August 2012. London Assembly Summary published:

http://www.london.gov.uk /who-runs-london/the-london-

assembly/assembly investigation/empty-shops

Hall, Suzanne, 2012 City, Street and Citizen: The measure of the ordinary, London: Routledge.

http://www.routledge.com/books/details/9780415688659/

Hall, Suzanne, 2012 ‘For the future good of our high streets we need a better understanding of the
social and economic life of local worlds in the context of global change’, British Politics and
Policy at LSE (14 Feb 2012) Blog Entry.

http://blogs.Ise.ac.uk/politicsandpolicy /2012/02 /14 /localism-high-street/

Hall, Suzanne, 2011 ‘High Street Adaptations: Ethnicity, independent retail practices and
Localism in London’s urban margins’, in Environment and Planning A vol. 43, no. 11, pp. 2571-

2588 http://www.envplan.com/abstract.cgi?id=aq494




31

v nef

Re-imagining the high street

The 2010 Clone Town Report



32

nef is an independent think-and-do
tank that inspires and demonstrates
real economic well-being.

We aim to improve quality of life by
promoting innovative solutions that
challenge mainstream thinking on
economic, environmental and social
Issues. We work In partnership ana
put people and the planet first.

A report from the Connected Economies Team

nef (the new economics foundation) is a registered charity founded in 1986 by the leaders of The Other Economic Summit (TOES),
which forced issues such as international debt onto the agenda of the G8 summit meetings. It has taken a lead in helping establish new
coalitions and organisations such as the Jubilee 2000 debt campaign; the Ethical Trading Initiative; the UK Social Investment Forum;
and new ways to measure social and economic well-being.



Contents

Foreword

Executive summary

Part 1: High street collapse?

Part 2: The clone town parade 2009
Part 3: Communities fighting back

Part 4: Re-imagining your local high street to support
a low carbon, high well-being future

Recommendations
Appendix: Clone Town Survey

Endnotes

13
27

34
43
44
46



34
Foreword

Why does it matter that our town centres increasingly all look

the same? |s the spread of clone towns and the creeping
homogenisation of the high street anything more than an aesthetic
blight? We think so. Yes, distinctiveness and a sense of place matter
to people. Without character in our urban centres, living history and
visible proof that we can in some way shape and influence our
living environment we become alienated in the very places that we
should feel at home.

But it is about much more than that. In the 1980s Britain soundly rejected the
dehumanising character of a state, centrally planned economy. Yet without
really being consulted, we have ended up with something as bad, if not worse,
a corporate, centrally planned economy that lacks even a public sense of
responsibility for the welfare of the people it serves. The chain stores and global
brands that have taken over our high streets have legal obligations to put the
interests of investors first, and take decisions in remote corporate headquarters,
inherently removed from their local consequences.

The recession is revealing too how the clone retailers can be fair weather friends.
As soon as an area no longer meets tightly defined corporate criteria they will wave
goodbye. For this reason, diversity matters for local economic resilience. Locally
rooted, independent retailers relate differently to the communities they serve. In
economic terms, more of the money spent in them is liable to stay and re-circulate
in the local area. They are more likely to support other local businesses too, rather
than procuring the goods and services they need from other remote national and
international suppliers. In difficult times, locally rooted stores are also more likely to
go to greater lengths to remain open, doing whatever they can to keep trading.

Where large clone stores dominate, research shows that people become less
engaged with community life. They have fewer conversations while out shopping
and can even be less likely to vote. Human relationships and the quality of civic life
suffers.

But now we have an opportunity. Our high streets can become centres of economic
and social revival. Just what is needed for a ‘Big Society’. By bringing empty properties
back into use we could see a proliferation of new local food hubs to sell and learn
about local food production. There could be energy saving hubs to provide the latest
on saving energy, going green and saving money. There are openings for time banks
and tool share initiatives to bring people together, again these save people money
and increase the range of services available locally. Local finance hubs that offer

a range of alternative arrangements to the discredited big banks — such as credit
unions and local currency schemes could also expand. All of these could underpin a
local economic renaissance, increasing vibrancy and resilience.

Turning the tide on Clone Town Britain is about much more than getting rid of

dull uniformity. How we organise our high streets carries a kind of DNA for our
communities. We know from nature that a diverse gene pool is necessary for good
health. Economic diversity is vital too for healthy local economies. With that in mind,
it is now time to re-imagine our high streets for the benefit of everyone.

Andrew Simms
Policy director, nef

Re-imagining the high street 2



35
Executive Summary

In this report nef offers up a different vision of our high streets -
one which does not rely on our being merely consumers but on
developing a different experience of the high street which supports
us to live better, more sustainably. If we are to meet a range of
challenges that we face, from climate change to the economic
crisis, we need to bring our high streets back to life.

nef's Clone Town Britain Report published in June 2005, called attention to how
the increasing domination of large chain stores left our communities and high
streets vulnerable to economic shocks. Now, as the economic crisis plays out in
the UK economy, it is clear just how vulnerable the domination of chains on our
high streets has left them. In times of recession, chain stores have proven to be fair
weather friends. Some have abandoned the high street entirely migrating to large,
high volume trading locations. Others have simply shut less profitable stores.

In 2009, at the height of the recession, we once again took stock of the nation’s
high streets. We found Britain still to be a nation of clone towns.

Key findings in Re-imagining the high street include that:

® 41 percent of the towns surveyed were clone towns, 23 per cent border towns
and 36 per cent were home towns.

® In actual numbers, the survey revealed 36 clone towns, 20 border towns and
31 home towns.

e Ofthe London villages surveyed 43 per cent were clone towns, 7 per cent
border towns and 50 per cent were home towns.

The UK's highest-scoring clone town from those surveyed is Cambridge which
managed a poor 11.6 on the clone town scale, with 0 — 100 representing clone
town to home town. This may seem surprising. Cambridge, with its dreaming spires
and huge tourist pull, might not be expected to snatch the dubious crown of the
UK’s most cloned town out of the hands of our 2005 ‘winner’, Exeter — which in our
survey has slipped to joint second place with Reading. It is not so surprising when
you look beyond the academic spires to the high street where you find diversity is a
stranger with only nine varieties of shop reported in our people’s high street survey.

The highest-scoring home town was Whitstable, Kent, which scored an impressive
92.1 on our scale and boasts a wide variety of independent shops in the town.
Famous for its Oyster Festival and a growing food culture, members of the
community are trying to ensure that any further development within Whitstable
celebrates local distinctiveness, and supports the development of a local culture
that is sustainable.

Of the London Villages surveyed, West London’s high streets are losing their identity
more rapidly than other parts of the city, with 9 of the 13 West London villages
registered as clone towns. Richmond tops the table with just 5 independent traders
counted on its high street. Only Shepherd’s Bush registered as a home town from
West London. How long this status can be maintained remains to be seen with the
opening of the largest urban area indoor shopping centre in Europe - ‘Westfield
London’ - right next door, complete with over 250 chains stores.

Re-imagining the high street 3



36

Of the 18 London villages that were re-surveyed from 2005, Hampstead, Camden
and Brixton all moved from border to clone status. There was better news for
Streatham Hill, improving from a border to a home town and Muswell Hill, which
moved from a clone to a border town.

The recession has left holes on the high streets with the dramatic collapse of such
household names as Woolworths and Barratts. In 2009 a reported 17,880 retailers
had shut up shop. The towns most dependent on the biggest chains and out of
town stores have proven to be most vulnerable to the economic crisis. The impact
of high streets facing creeping abandonment, on our communities and our sense
of social cohesion, is only beginning to be understood. But, it is becoming clear
that a Big Society cannot be built on the fractured foundations of undermined local
economies.

And, as we face the additional challenges of climate change and peak oil, we find
that the cloning of our towns and cities has created a brittle infrastructure unable
to respond to these challenges. Understanding this bigger picture is crucial to
determining what antidotes are necessary to prevent the further homogenisation of
our high streets and support Britain’s transformation towards a low carbon future.

Communities are already fighting back and the current crisis offers a huge
opportunity to re-imagine our high streets. New powers such as the Sustainable
Communities Act 2007 provide a way for residents to take control. The transition
town network is inspiring increasing numbers to take action in their community
and move away from our unsustainable dependence on fossil fuels. Ways to
support increased local spending on the high street such as the Wedge Card

and alternative local currencies such as the Lewes Pound and the Brixton Pound
are being used more widely, and communities are increasingly taking control of
services such as post offices and local shops to ensure their continued existence.

Rising to the challenge of climate change and peak oil will require a different
development approach: one which harnesses the potential of local entrepreneurs,
includes residents in the planning and delivery of schemes which intimately affect
how they live, and recognises that public well-being is the overarching principle of
success, not merely the growth of the retail sector.

With a little imagination, our high streets could become places where we go to
actively engage with other people in our communities; places where shopping is
just one small part of a rich mix of activities including working, sharing, exchanging,
playing and learning new skills. As the hub of our communities, the high street
could become the place where we begin to build a more sustainable world.

This report contains a range of policy solutions and actions to transform our high
streets:

What you can do
Take action

® Be Active, Take Notice and Connect with people around you to grow a thriving
town centre for where you live.

® Use yourindependent cinema, local independent retailers and markets.
Independent high street business can only survive if local people buy from
them - seek out independents and locally sourced products.

® Join or help to create a local Transition Town group, or civic society.
® Getinvolved in running a local currency

® Use FreeCycle to redistribute your unwanted goods and belongings.
® Grow more of your own food.

® Run (or attend) a re-imagined high street project in your community. People
need to help planners create a re-invigorated community — Government;
(central or local) cannot deliver this alone.

Re-imagining the high street



37

What local government and other public institutions can do

Establish High Street Hubs in key vacant shops to accommodate activities
that help develop local economic sustainability. These could range from local
currency development (like Brixton £) to local food distribution and tool share/
exchange schemes. NB. These are NOT general ‘community centres’.

Sign up to the Sustainable Communities Act

Make residents an equal partner in your Master Planning processes

Design well-being, distinctiveness and sustainability indicators into your Master
Planning processes.

Build in well-being measures in addition to sustainability into your procurement
policies

Support and help grow local Community Land Trusts
Pursue the principles of Shared Space in your public space development

Ensure resident participation in Business Improvement Districts

What national government can do

Roll out the Post Office Bank

Develop a land registry of commercial property so we can understand who
owns our town centres.

Create an Empty Dwellings Management Order instrument for Local Authorities
to apply to empty builds to bring them back into active use for public benefit.

Establish a Local Competition Ombudsman as recommended by the
Competition Commission which will reign in the power of the big four grocery
chains.

Revising allotment legislation to encourage Local Authorities to provide more
allotments, community gardens, community orchards or market gardens.

Introduce an addition to the small business rate relief giving local authorities
powers to offer discretionary business rate relief for new low carbon businesses
moving on to the high street and to existing small and medium independent
businesses who commit to reducing their carbon use.

Introduce well-being indicators into all Planning Policy statements

Introduce a Green Investment Bank

Re-imagining the high street 5



38
Part 1: High street collapse?

Where loss of genetic diversity threatens the survival of species
and makes natural ecosystems vulnerable to collapse, clone
towns imperil local livelihoods, communities and our culture by
decreasing the resilience of high streets to economic downturns

and diminishing consumer choice.
Clone Town Britain, nef (the new economics foundation) 2005

Five years ago, nef's Clone Town Britain: The survey results on the bland state
of the nation revealed how the nation’s high streets were being overtaken by
identikit chains stores and supermarkets. Guilty of destroying the identity of

our towns, this cloning of our town centres also increased their vulnerability to
economic shocks. Just as in nature, where an optimally diverse ecosystem is
more resilient to shocks, and better able to recover from them, we argued that a
diversity of types, size and ownership of shops is vital to a creating a dynamic
and resilient local economy.

The current recession has exposed the vulnerability of our economy and, unless
action is taken, threatens to undermine our local economies. The figures already
indicate that this is happening. Of the £288bn consumers spent in 2008, more
than half — £163.6bn - can be classed as ‘indulgence’ spending® which is
vulnerable in a downturn. The latest figures released on consumer spending?
indicate that UK household’s expenditure in 2009 fell by 3.4 per cent. Major
drivers of this decrease were transport, spending on personal care products,
related services and personal effects3 and restaurants and hotels, which fell by
5.6 per cent, 4.5 per cent and 6 per cent respectively.4 The first three months of
2009 alone saw 35,000 retail-related job losses.®

The planned public spending cuts of £113bn announced in the new
government’s 2010 budget will lead to increasing job losses and, coupled with
the impact of the planned VAT rise, will further constrain demand on the high
street. At the time of writing this report (August 2010) the expectation in many
quarters is that this will result in a double dip recession rather than economic
recovery.

Meanwhile, small businesses and local services, which have been closing at
record rates over the past decade under unfair competitive pressure from the
multiples, are faced with a loss in access to credit as the UK's banking system,
after years of making profits through speculative activity on international markets,
proves itself completely incapable of supporting local economies.6 Today, the
new government finds itself with an apparent standoff between banks, who say
there is no demand for lending by small businesses, and small businesses, who
say they are not applying for loans because they believe them to be too costly
and that they would, in any case, be refused.” Figures released from the Bank
of England in July 2010 indicate yet again that more loans are being repaid than
lent by the banking sector. Since the 2008 banking crisis figures from the banks
on their lending showed that it had only exceeded repayments in three of the
months in the period.

Re-imagining the high street 6



39

So, from a bleak portrait in our first survey in 2005 - of high streets being cloned
with multiples dominating shopping areas from Thurso to Taunton, we are now
faced with their selective retreat, a reverse leverage leaving large swathes

of many high streets with empty store fronts. The impact on employment is
already huge (see Table 1). The impact on communities and our sense of

social cohesion as a result of high streets facing creeping abandonment is only
beginning to be understood. But it is becoming clear that a Big Society cannot
be built on the fractured foundations of broken, undermined local economies.

In this report, nef offers up a different vision of our high streets — one which
does not rely on consumption but on developing a different experience of

the high street, offering diverse activities and the active engagement of local
communities. To understand the necessity of this vision, we have to analyse
how our high streets, the centres of our towns, cities and neighbourhoods, have
reached the state they are in.

The Retreat of the Glittering Chains

On the high street, the trend is that multiples8 emerge from recessions with an
increased share of the consumer market, and with a more firmly established
network of branches. However, this is achieved through consolidation and
concentrating their activities in higher volume trading locations. In 2007, there
were approximately 200,000 retail businesses operating in the UK, with a
relatively small number of multiple retailers occupying almost 80 per cent of total
sales. On our local high streets they have proven to be fair weather friends, and
as sales figures collapsed, so did their shop numbers.

“We've got 25 underperforming Simply food stores... which are simply
too small for us to be able to deal with in a profitable way and we've had
to take some harsh action on that today.”
Sir Stuart Rose, Chief Executive,
Marks and Spencer, 7 January 2009

Although during the recession period of 2007-2009 retail multiples’ branch
openings were greater than closures, branch shedding has been concentrated
in small shop convenience related areas, motor-related and bulky goods
(builders merchants, general furniture and office supplies).

Figure 1: UK Retail sales volumes and values (2007-2009) % change on a year earlier
6.0

. Volumes

§ 1T
: 171

-4.0 4

-6.0
2007 2007 2007 2007 2008 2008 2008 2008 2009 2009 2009 2009
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Source: National Statistics, Experian

Re-imagining the high street 7



40

From Clone Town to Ghost Town: Dumfries

Dumfries, our second highest scoring Clone Town in 2005 has been hammered by the credit crunch. In August 2010
it had 30 empty retail units in total according to the Dumfries and Galloway Standard.!! The high street was hit hard
in 2009 with 14 shop units lying empty including the space left by the collapse of the retail giant Woolworths — which
Iceland now plans to take over. Half the huge units at Cuckoo Bridge, a major out of town retail — park, sit empty
“adding to the thousands of square footage of retail space throughout Dumfries which is crying out for help”, reports
the local newspaper.12

High streets lined with homogeneous chain stores selling narrowly differentiated
consumer goods have suddenly found themselves emptying out, as the easy
credit-driven consumer binge of the last decade comes to a dramatic end.

The rapid increase in the number of empty shops on the high streets has

been driven for the most part by the continuing trend (accelerated during the
recession) of larger multiples moving to locations with increased customer
numbers and space, increases in internet shopping, and the impact of the
recession on smaller independents.

The Local Data Company report released in February 20109 investigated

nearly 700 shopping locations throughout Britain and found 17,880 retailers

had shut up shop by the end of 2009, although the rate of closures declined
significantly during the second half of the year. Topping the list of vacant retail
premises was the seaside town of Margate in Kent with a reported 27.2 per

cent of shops vacant. Shopping centres in the North East and Midlands also
fared badly: Wolverhampton has 23.9 per cent of shops empty, with Bradford,
Middlesborough and Sheffield following closely behind. The average UK vacancy
rates currently stand at 12.4 per cent.10

The towns most dependent on the biggest chains and out of town stores have
proven to be most vulnerable in the economic crisis.

The vulnerability of our multiple-led model of high street development to
recession was brought firmly into focus at the end of 2008 with the collapse of
a number of high profile retailers. In some cases the demise of the chains has
been dramatic.

A century since its first store opened in Liverpool in 1909, the last Woolworths
store closed its doors in January 2009. Altogether, 807 Woolworths stores
closed, 20 per cent of which remained vacant at the end of 2009 (by definition
the less desirable in terms of the customer footfall) at the cost of 27,000 jobs.
The chain’s demise was met with an outburst of national nostalgia but less
attention was paid to the knock on effects on the high street. Zavvi, previously
Virgin Megastore, the UK's largest music retailer, suddenly lost its main
distributor of CDs and DVDs and was also forced in to administration.

Re-imagining the high street 8



41

Table 1: Major high street multiple retail - job losses and store closures April 2009.

Company Job losses Store closures
Woolworths 27,000 807
Stylo Group (Barrats & Priceless shoes) 2,500 220
Zavvis 1,518 125
Celebrations (Greetings card group) 1,400 214
Marks & Spencer 1,230 25
Shop Direct (catalogue retailer) 1,150 0
Freemans Grattan Group (Catalogue retailer) 1,000 0
Adams 850 11
JJB Sports (Lifestyle division) 559 55
Vodafone 500 0
Makro (cash & carry retailer) 378 3
Empire Direct 350 14
Home retail group (Argos & Homebase) 300 0
Burberry 290 0
The Officers Club 280 32
MFI 260 111
Halfords 250 0
Waterstones 200 20
Passion for Perfume 195 45
Body Shop 150 0
Original Shoe Co & Qube Fashion 121 10
Sofa Workshop 120 20
Principles 110 66
ProCook (kitchenware retailer) 100 18
Land of Leather 95 33
Total 40,906 1,929

By the end of 2009, retail multiples going to the wall or those forced to reduce
branch numbers left vacant 11,000 shops (6 per cent of the total). When the
recession lifts, multiples are unlikely to re-occupy premises in urban areas, small
towns and rural areas if they fail to meet the customer footfall and floor space
demands of their identikit chain formats.

How much retail is enough? A warning from ghost-town America

‘America is overstored — too many formats cannibalize each other... Dead and
dying malls litter the nation’s suburbs. Most [big-box] power centers are risky
propositions, as category Killers and discounters battle amongst themselves in
submarket-by submarket survival contests. The only sure thing is that owners
will be challenged to re-lease empty boxes abandoned by the losers.”
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Emerging Trends in Real Estate, 200214

In the UK we are far from the 46.6 square feet of retail per capita that is currently
drowning the economy in the US,15 but the volume of retail space in the UK is
rising, and fast. Not only is the amount of retail space in the UK increasing, so too is
the size of new developments.

Re-imagining the high street 9



42

Warnings on the over-supply of retail were ignored by planners in American
cities. Fuelled by cheap credit and land, they continued on a retail development
boom even when the economy began to slow in 2007. More than 140 million
square feet of new shopping centre’s and big box stores opened that year
alone.’6 Since the 1990s, the American retail sector has been expanding at a
much faster rate than consumer demand. Between 1990 and 2005, the amount
of store space in the US doubled, ballooning from 19 to 38 square feet per
capita whilst income grew by just 28 per cent.1”

Britain has experienced a similarly unprecedented retail expansion. A staggering
88 million square feet of new stores has been added over the past 20 years.18
This includes gargantuan gilded shopping centres such as Westfield in London’s
Shepherd’s Bush (a retail floor area of 1.615 million square feet, the equivalent

of about 30 football pitches), Liverpool One, 1.4 million square feet (28 football
pitches), Cabot Circus, 1.5 million square feet in Bristol and, featured in our Clone
Town case studies, The Grand Arcade, 450,000 square feet, in Cambridge.

Research in the UK has shown that the large multiple retailers actually suck
money out of a local area as their supply chains are predominantly national,

and their presence tends to weaken local supply chain linkages that serve local
retailers. An analysis of supply chain spending patterns found that approximately
90 per cent of spending from supermarkets and chain stores leaks out of the
local economy almost immediately, and there is little evidence to suggest that
their impact on the local economy has, oris likely to improve.19

According to Stacy Mitchell, Senior Researcher at the Institute for Local Self-
Reliance, massive retail expansion in the US was possible because the big box
retailers adopted a predatory expansion strategy, built not on meeting increased
local demand but siphoning economic activity from other parts of the towns they
occupy.20 By zoning new land for retail, US cities have given developers little
incentive to redevelop older shopping centres. The victims have been not only
high streets and independent stores but also other, multiple retailers.

“You have seen these waves of retail development in the US with each new
wave eating what came before” says Mitchell. “First you had the strip shopping
centres, then the malls, then the bigger ‘power malls’, then the big box retailers.
There are now hundreds of these places lying empty across the U.S.”

The physical and psychological costs to the community of these empty retail
spaces are enormous — they drag down house prices, become the focus for
criminal activity and generally make towns less attractive. However, “at the
moment there is no real penalty for multiple retailers who leave premises
abandoned,” says Mitchell, “and quite a lot of upside for them in terms of gaining
market share.”

Erosion of our public life

The proliferation of chain stores has also isolated us from one another.
According to the 2005 Time Use Survey, 37 per cent of us shop every day,
while only 33 per cent of us spend time at home with friends and family. It has
isolated us from the conditions under which many of the goods we consume
are produced. When our clothes are produced in far distant factories it is easy
to forget the conditions they were created in. Child-labour, long hours and
dangerous conditions can be countenanced if they are taking place somewhere
else.

Closer to home, it has also vastly reduced and impoverished the human
exchanges that connect us, and the social networks that support our personal
and communal well-being.

The domination of our town centres by large chain stores, and the invasion

of the shopping mall has led to an erosion of the public realm. The creeping
privatisation of our cities has worn away at the notion of shared space over
which we take collective responsibility. Yet this ability to share resources is
central to our economic resilience - it provides a common pool that we are able
to draw on in times of need.

Re-imagining the high street



43

In 20086, a report by the journalist Anna Minton for the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors, examined the growing private ownership and management of the public
realm, and showed an alarming rise in large mall-style shopping developments -
“over-controlled, sterile places which lack connection to the reality and diversity of
the local environment”. Each new development has become a mini retail-fiefdom,
zealously guarded by its own private security. In London, the Broadgate Centre, a
30-acre site owned and managed by development company Broadgate Estates is
patrolled 24 hours a day by private security, and is aimed specifically at attracting
‘high-earning people’.

The creeping dominance of supermarkets

In addition to the pressures of the recession, research by Stirling University?! has
again highlighted the impact of supermarket development on the high street, noting
that high street diversity is diminishing as a result of supermarket developments.

During the period 2007-2009 larger grocers and their ‘local’ styled outlets have
expanded across high streets at the expense of 914 branches of smaller shop
multiples in the sectors of confectionary/ tobacco/newsagents, off-licences, tea/
coffee and bakers. Non-food ranges are also firmly in the sights of the major
grocers: between 2003 and 2009 the large grocer’s share of non-food sales grew
from 8.4 per cent to 13.5 per cent. As a total across the UK the number of chemist
outlets grew by nearly 20 per cent, however this figure masks the fact that almost
half of this expansion was due to the opening of in-store units by the largest four
grocers (Tesco, Morrison, Asda, J. Sainsbury). Books and clothing are also areas
where major retailers have expanded their product range, and this added pressure
combined with increased internet shopping has contributed to a net loss of 189
bookshops.

Support our independents

“High streets are the heart of local communities and economies — providing
jobs and essential services. Their future success cannot be left to chance.
Town centres need to be effectively managed by local authorities with their
retailers, other businesses and residents.”22

British Retail Consortium, 2010

Whilst media attention has focused on the headline job losses from chains and big
corporations, it is small businesses that account for the majority of private sector
jobs: 46 percent in 2008, around 11.5 million jobs overall.23 The majority of retail
businesses are not multiples, they are small independent retail businesses, with
over 75 per cent employing four or less people.

There are approximately 900,000 shops in the UK,24 almost half of which can be
found around urban areas, small towns and rural areas, for instance, those shops
outside of what are considered higher volume trading locations and by definition
less attractive to Multiples. Multiples occupy only 20 per cent of these shops, and
although this represents 65 per cent of the available shop floor space in the UK, this
figure only serves to remind that they are not the mainstay of our local high streets.
It is the independent sector that provides goods and services locally, and where

we need to place our hope, and give our support to if we are to revive our local
economies.

The withdrawal of bank branches from high streets — a deliberate cost saving
measure by retail banks — has meant more inconvenience for customers and a
reduction in the customer footfall and business on the high street. Our monopolised
banking system is no longer structurally fit to serve the dynamic small enterprises
that keep our local economies alive, and provide the social glue that hold our
communities together.

Understanding these dynamics on our high streets is important if we are to find
alternative solutions to the malaise affecting our local economies. In the following
chapters we report the results of the clone town survey and how communities are
fighting back to reclaim their distinctiveness.

Re-imagining the high street 1



44

Box 1: Local shops and services in the UK under threat:

70 per cent of villages in England, some 7,000, are without a shop of any kind.25

® 40 per cent of bank branches in the UK have closed since 1990, with 2,737 bank branches closing in the last
ten years, according to the Campaign for Community Banking.

@ Up to 1,000 small stores could close on the back of the Post Office’s closure of 2,500 offices.26

® 39 pubs are closing each week because of the combination of low supermarket prices and high taxes. And
these are not just rural pubs. Recent failures have taken place in urban or semi-urban areas, in some cases
across the road or next to a closing post office.27

Box 2: The local economic value of Street Markets

Street markets keep more money circulating in the local economy for longer. They provide twice as many jobs as
supermarkets, support retail diversity by providing space for a range of independent local traders, and provide a
low risk environment in which new enterprises can flourish. For example, analysis by nef of Queens Market in East
London, found that it generated over £13 million for the local economy, of which £9 million was spent on food. The
market provided employment for 581 full time equivalent employees, of which 308 were local. Employment density
(the ratio of employment per square metre of space) was one employee per 10 square metres at the market, nearly
double the rate of employment at food superstores/supermarkets. In addition, 99 per cent of the 140 retailers at
Queens Market were independent businesses.?8 Money is not only spent directly at markets — they support other
local retail and bring wider regeneration benefits.

Re-imagining the high street 12



45
Part 2: The clone town parade 2009

The Clone Town Britain Survey, launched by nef in 2004, was
designed to be a people’s survey of their high streets, and a
rallying cry for action against their homogenisation, by providing
a methodology to broadly quantify the loss of diversity on a
community’s high street.

The Survey groups high streets into three broad categories: clone town, border
town and home town, with high street diversity increasing across these categories.
A home town is a place which has an individual character and is instantly
recognisable and distinctive to the people who live there. By contrast, a clone town
has had its individuality removed and replaced by a monochrome strip of global
and national chains and could easily be mistaken for dozens of other bland town-
centres across the country. In between lie the border towns, at risk of the clone
town fate, yet hanging onto a semblance of individuality...just.

Whether a town feels like a clone town or a home town says something very
specific about the health of a local economy. Although apparently economically
healthy, clone towns have very little local retail left. This means that less money is
likely to be circulating in the local economy, the social glue that holds the economy
together will be weak, and the town is likely to have little left of the enterprise and
infrastructure that supports economic resilience. In times of economic shock, as
we have seen in the previous section, multiples ‘rationalise’ their activities, close
less profitable outlets and generally flee the high streets leaving them vulnerable to
becoming ghost towns.

The methodology

In the 2009 survey we re-surveyed some of the key clone, home and border towns
of the original 2005 survey to see how they had fared in the intervening period.
Responding to the upheaval created by the economic crisis set publication of the
results back, but this has allowed us to take a longer view of how different trends
interacted.

The methodology involves a town’s residents counting and categorising between
40-60 shops on the high street according to ownership, starting from what could be
considered its centre, and recording whether the shops are independently owned or
part of a chain, and the type of shop (based on 26 different categories).

Surveys were only recorded for towns with a population size of between 5,000

and 150,000. Places below this population size may not have a sufficient sample

of shops to survey and above this size, a town is highly likely to have more than
one retail ‘centre’. For the 2009 survey, an additional category of Post-Office was
introduced, and we enhanced the survey methodology to be more sensitive to retail
diversity.29 This means that whilst the overall categorisation of clone, border and
home town 2005 and 2009 results remain comparable, the specific scores from
each survey year do not relate to the same information and should not be directly
compared. Box 3 illustrates the methodology behind the clone town survey.

As with the 2005 survey, because of its unique character, we separated out the
results for London from the rest of the UK. Where the same location has been
surveyed more than once, and the scores were not identical, an average of the
results was used.

Re-imagining the high street 13



46

Box 3: Clone town methodology

Example: ‘Blandton’

A survey of 50 shops carried out on the high street of ‘Blandton’ found 18 different types of shops. It also revealed
that, out of the 50 shops counted, 10 were independently owned and 40 were chains. ‘Blandton’ therefore received
the following score:

Clone Town 10 (no of independent stores) x 75 = 750
o = =15 + 18 (no of types of shop) = 33
Britain Score 50 (number of shops)

With a score of 33 we see that ‘Blandton’ is indeed a Clone Town.

Tl ] w V] [

Clone Town Home Town

*multiplying by 75 scales the index allowing us to give a ‘Clone Town Britain’ score between 0 and 100

The Clone Town Britain Index measures both the identity and diversity of outlets on the core of the high street.

It weights more for identity because ownership is critical to the health of the local economy and community. But
diversity is important, and so is also included. Towns scoring below 50 on the scale are classified as Clone Towns.
Over half of the stores counted are chains, and there is little diversity. Towns scoring over 65 are classified as
Home Towns, where almost two thirds or more of the stores are independent, and there is a wide range of outlets.
In between are ‘Border Towns, which are neither highly homogenised, nor strongly independent and diverse.

The Clone Town Survey results 2009

In 2009, we received 117 valid surveys from across the UK, 30 of which were of
London villages. Of the 87 towns outside London, 12 were from the South West of
England, 19 from the South East, 15 from the East of England, 12 from the Midlands
and 18 from Northern England. Five surveys were received from Scotland and 6
from Wales.

Of the towns surveyed outside of London, 41 per cent were clone towns, 23 per
cent border towns and 36 per cent were home towns. Of the London villages
surveyed, 43 per cent were clone towns, 7 per cent border towns and 50 per cent
were home towns. The town that reached the most extreme ‘clone’ score was
Cambridge, managing only 11.6. The highest scoring home town was Whitstable
scoring 92.1.

Figure 2: Clone Town scores 2009 versus 2005, excluding London

2009 2005

Re-imagining the high street 14



47

Despite the increased awareness of the loss of identity due to the spread of
multiples since the publication of our Clone Town Britain report, and the many
campaigns to save local shops, our 2009 results show very little change in the
Cloned State-of-the-nation.

Our top ten clone towns come from all regions of the UK except the midlands
and range from major conurbations to a smaller tourist town. Of the 15 towns
outside London that were re-surveyed from 2005, only two changed status, both
for the worse. The market town of Shirley in the West Midlands moved from a
border to a clone town and Lewes in Sussex moved from a home to a border
town.

There was an average of 16 different categories of shop, out of 26, on the high
streets. Clone town high streets, unsurprisingly, displayed a smaller range of
categories of shop, averaging only 14, whilst both home and border towns
averaged 17 categories of shop.

London survey results

London showed a small improvement on the 2005 survey findings. Of the 30
London surveys, 13 were clone towns (a similar percentage to 2005), just two
were border towns, and 15 were home towns, six more than our 2005 survey of
27 London villages, when there were just nine home towns.

The survey suggested West London’s high streets are losing their identity more
rapidly than other parts of London, and this trend will continue unless there is a
concerted action to celebrate, cherish and create more unique areas. At the time
of writing this report another blow was handed out to Portobello’s famous street
market as yet another unique arcade — The Good Fairy which housed 50 antique
stalls — fell prey to bland development plans. In this case a bustling arcade is

to be replaced by a five-storey retail and loft style apartment complex.3! There
appear few benefits to the local community and existing retailers besides an
increase in the landlords’ bank balances, whilst those elements which make this
area so distinct and celebrated, for instance in the Great Street Awards 2009, are
slowly but surely being eroded.

“It is clear that Portobello Road’s success does not lie in conventional
public realm thinking but rather in its independent spirit. It works on three
levels: acting as a focal point for local communities, providing goods for
different needs and social levels, and as an international tourist attraction.
Portobello Road reveals how real commitment to an already strong
historic urban form, alongside an independent economic vision that
continues to nurture future talent, has led to a powerful sense of place.”
The Great Street Award 2009.32

Figure 3: Clone Town scores 2009 versus 2005 for London

2009 2005

Re-imagining the high street 15



48

Nine of the 13 West London villages were registered as clone towns. Richmond London survey results 2009
tops the table with just five independents counted on its high street, suggesting
Conservative MP Zac Goldsmith will have his work cut out in his campaign to

create a retail association to save local independents. South Richmond

At the other end of the scale only Shepherd’s Bush in addition to Brentford East Putney
registered as a home town from West London. How long Shepherd’s Bush'’s

ethnically diverse Goldhawk Road, with 48 out of 52 shops classified as Hammersmith
independent by our survey, can survive remains to be seen. The recession has

neatly coincided with the opening of the largest urban area indoor shopping Clapham
centre in Europe — ‘Westfield London’ - right next door, complete with over 250

chains stores. Hampstead
Of the 18 London villages that were resurveyed from 2005, three worsened. Wimbledon

Hampstead, Camden and Brixton all moved from border to clone status. There
was better news on nearby ‘hills’, with Streatham Hill improving from a border to
a home town and Muswell Hill from a clone to a border town.

Putney
Camden

Twickenham

Chiswick

Brixton

Muswell Hill

East Sheen

Peckham 66.6
Stratford 67.3
Kentish Town 67.6
Highgate 68.4
West Hampstead 70.0
East Finchley 70.5
Upton Park 70.7
Borough 71.2
Streatham Hill 76.0
Finsbury Park 81.5
Wembley 81.5
Shoreditch 81.7
Shepherds Bush 83.2
Stoke Newington 84.2
Brentford 84.6

Re-imagining the high street 16



49
The clone towns

Cambridge, south east England: number 1 clone

Dreaming spires, cobbled streets, gentle punting down the Cam river. These are the
idyllic images of the East Anglian town of Cambridge. But it's a different story on the
high street. Yoke together a world-renowned tourist destination, a massive new
shopping mall, public transport funneling shoppers into an ever tighter core,
university landlords focused on global academic excellence, and a very sudden
collapse of credit and you have the perfect storm confronting independent retailers
in Cambridge, the UK’s most ‘cloned’ town centre.

While Cambridge University celebrates eight centuries of academic excellence

and intellectual diversity, a bland homogeneity and encroaching vacant premises
characterise the city's shopping centre. Lion Yard, Market Hill, Petty Cury and Sidney
Street score a lowly 11.6 out of a possible 100 on our scale, putting Cambridge’s
centre one clone town point ahead of runners-up Reading and Exeter. Diversity is a
stranger in Cambridge’s clone zone; our pollsters counted a meagre nine varieties
of shop (the lowest diversity score of all 128 of our surveys), with 25 of the 57
surveyed being clothing multiples. 2009 figures from the city council show around
40 vacant units in the historic city centre core and 30 more in and around ‘The
Grafton Centre’ shopping centre, other retail parks and shopping streets.34

If things weren’t looking bland enough, close to Lion Yard, a new 450,000
square feet of mall opened in March 2008, backed by Grosvenor Estates and the
university’s pension fund. The Grand Arcade’s swish website claims:

“We have combined classical heritage with cutting edge retail to create
Cambridge’s newest 21st Century style destination... Discover even bigger
branches of favourite names like Topshop/Topman and River Island, as
well as shops that are completely new to Cambridge like: Apple, The White
Company, TM Lewin, Swarovski, Penhaligon’s and LK Bennett.” 35

Twelve months on, even after ‘sweetheart’ inducements, rumoured to include
two-year long rent exemptions, empty retail units remained, along with a further 64
empty shop premises in Cambridge town centre.36 Its occupied premises include
at least two brands that have simply upped sticks from Lion Yard, leaving those
spaces unoccupied.

We see signs of an even more dystopian future for the high street, unless a

new way of re-focusing its traditional role as the main and most visible centre

of community activity can be found. If future retail patterns are to remain at the
mercy of corporate funding which is driven by expectations of ever increasing profit
margins, the local high street will not survive.

The city’'s oldest, most important landlords are its two dozen or so colleges; from
them, virtually all retailers in central Cambridge lease their premises. The colleges in
turn constitute the university, itself one of the UK’s biggest property owners.

Academic excellence does not come cheap. The university faces a challenge in
fund-raising if it is to continue competing with the world’s academic powerhouses.
Independent Cambridge traders leasing college-owned premises may be suffering
indirectly due to the consequences of this challenge. Advised to sell some assets at
the peak of the property boom in the mid-2000s, the colleges are now compelled
to levy higher rents on a now diminished property base. So, in the worst downturn
since the 1930s, some are seeking rent rises of up to 50 per cent.

Re-imagining the high street 17



50

In 2008, wealthy St John’s College sought such an increase from its tenant
Frederick Tranter, trading from a prime site opposite the college’s main gate.
After 30 years, the long-established tobacconist decided he could not pay, and
on Christmas Eve closed for good. Other independents have followed; more
look likely to do so. A sympathetic local landlord recently wrote in the local
newspaper of the dire situation he faced in trying to support local businesses by
keeping rents down:

“[...] the Valuation Office Agency seems to have had no such discretion
and bumped my rateable value up from £7,000 a year to £11,000 a
year, a 57 per cent increase... This hike in rates has coincided with the
new Bradwell’s Court coming on stream and the opening of the Grand
Arcade; double the floor area chasing half as many customers as there
were a year or two ago.” 37

Small retailers are finding their voice. In 2008 they formed ‘Independent
Cambridge’, a lobby group to engage with the multiples, landlords and other
stakeholders, as well with the city council’s ‘Love Cambridge’ retail promation.
The independents’ chairwoman Vanessa Dowell, who runs her second-
generation jewellery shop in Bridge Street, emphasises constructive dialogue
with landlords, and stresses that independents have no inherent conflict with
multiples; “Sitting down with Marks & Spencer, Next and the rest, they will all
tell you that we independents, just as much as the big boys, make Cambridge
shopping what it is. But we still have increasing pressures, and we need to be
heard”. 38

A booming regional hub for three decades, Cambridge’s centre now looks to
have become a victim of its own success. The frequent gridlock of Cambridge’s
ancient thoroughfares prompts the county council to run a ‘Park and Ride’ shuttle
for shoppers from five satellite sites. But the Stagecoach-operated buses drop
shoppers only in central hot spots like John Lewis. In consequence, according
to Ms Dowell’s research, shoppers’ footfall falls away drastically outside the tight
nexus of the city centre.

More intelligent management of traffic and pedestrian access may contribute

a little towards a solution. Cambridge City Council has actively adopted the
Sustainable Communities Act. One of the four policies adopted under the Act
in March 2009 is to take much transport management - including the shuttle —
back from the county.

Shirley, West Midlands: from a border town to clone town

Two decades into a battle with their local council and superstore developers,
independent traders and residents in Shirley, West Midlands, still find
themselves questioning the latest development plans being exhibited to the
public in June this year.

After one planning inquiry and a Compulsory Purchase Order, an end seemed
in sight in November 2008, when a planning inspector approved revisions to a
£100 million council-backed scheme. However, further adjustments, an expiry of
planning consent and a name change for the scheme, sees residents in 2010
continuing to try to find ways to make this development work well for Shirley
residents.

‘Keep Shirley Alive’, a defence group formed by local residents to protect the
area’s identity, welcomes an injection of new blood. But it says the scheme as
approved is too big, piling corporate pressure onto struggling independents.

The re-named ‘Parkgate’ scheme39 proposed by the developers Shirley
Advance, a joint venture between Helical Bar plc and Coltham Developments
Ltd,40 now provides for a 500-short stay underground car park with an additional
provision of 50 spaces for staff, and 138 dwellings in addition to an Asda and 20
retail units.41

Re-imagining the high street



51

According to the developer's website:

“The inclusion of a major foodstore within Parkgate has been a key
requirement for the regeneration of Shirley Town Centre throughout the
course of the project. Asda will help to draw shoppers back into the
central area; shoppers that are currently visiting the existing out-of-town
stores.” 42

An interesting argument to make in an area in which local opposition point out
that seven supermarkets already exist in close vicinity. As yet, little evidence
has been presented to verify how, direct employment aside, the spending in a
supermarket directly benefits the local economy and supports the development
of a thriving and diverse community.

Recent pressure on the community’s economy has seen a rise in the number
of retail vacancies. In our latest shops tally, the town has tipped from Border
to Clone town status, with a score of 50.8. ‘Keep Shirley Alive’ claim that the
development will siphon business away from their existing centre, turning a
bustling suburb of Solihull with a strong community spirit into little more than a
‘rat run’ to the new units.

On the borders of Shirley Park, the development also proposes to build on three
acres of green open space, effectively privatising an area that was formerly open
to the public. Local protesters argue a smaller development, which would not
takeover this green space, is possible and would like these alternative options to
be fully considered.

At points in the saga, residents have questioned the borough’s good faith in
conducting its public consultations. Early announcements referred to an anchor
food store being part of the development, which later became a superstore
selling, by definition or default more than just food. In their own poll of 2,000
residents, ‘Keep Shirley Alive’ found that 87 per cent opposed the idea. Over the
period of debating this development, commercial secrecy cloaking the council’s
dealings with a series of development partners has not reassured the group,
giving rise to fears that the community could be saddled with a white elephant.
On its website, the ‘Keep Shirley Alive’ group call for a new era of transparency.

“The last decade has been dominated by claims of a ‘done deal’ with
Asda, but a new era of openness and transparency could enable a new
objective look at what it is possible to provide in terms of ‘best value’ for
Shirley. The developers say that even if planning permission is granted
they will not start work until the latter half of 2011, so there is time.” 43

Exeter: princely landlords making hay, whilst the shops close

Exeter has yielded to Cambridge the dubious honour it won in our 2005 report.
Assessed against a different nationwide pool of towns, Exeter now ranks third,

with a percentage score of only 15.4. Our volunteers counted only 14 types of

store on its high street, out of a possible 26.

Natural topography has constricted and dictated the shape of Exeter's modern
urban core, limiting territory for expansion. That did not stop UK property giant
Land Securities opening the new Princess Hay shopping centre in 2007, with
a stated investment of over £200 million and 390,000 square feet of retail
space.44 Its Mall, containing over 60 stores, supplements the older established
Guildhall, Harlequins and St George’s centres: the first of these houses one of
the largest concentration of family-owned and independent stores in England.

In 2009, shop rental on a typical 20 year lease in Exeter’s high street was around
£220 to £240 per square foot, reportedly as high as in any regional centre
outside London. With upwards-only rent reviews every five years, the city’s stores
report freeholders — in the main, pension funds — at present demanding rises of
up to 30 per cent. Add on business rates equal to two-thirds of rents, and that

Re-imagining the high street 19



52

leaves the mid-sized branch of one greetings cards national chain store in Princess
Hay needing to raise £500,000 a year, before paying staff wages and meeting other
costs such as heat and light.

Occupancy rates in central Exeter have dipped in tune with the downturn. On and
around the high street, four independents - including a long — established gift
shop and a florist — are among those recently lost. Even new turnaround tenants in
the cheaper lets are feeling the pinch. Foodeaze [sic] a delicatessen and cookery
centre opened in St George’s Hall late in 2007, and closed only eight weeks later.
Among multiples in Exeter's malls, New Look, Principles, Zavvi, USC and Barratt
lead the list of recent victims, concentrated heavily in the discretionary spending
areas of apparel and footwear.

In 2009, tobacconist Martin McGahey was holding out as the high street’s last
independent shopkeeper, and was feeling the pressure. Since occupying a high
street shop in 1955, close to where his forebear Edgar started the business in 1880,
Mr McGahey observes his neighbours struggling. “We all rode the boom. But now
there has to be fresh thinking about how we make it out of this recession.”

On 16 December 2008, Exeter City Council formally adopted the Sustainable
Communities Act, and submitted a proposal to give the Council the power to retain
revenue from locally imposed non-domestic rates on store car parking spaces, with
the power for the Council to allow discounts to stores that source at least 30 per
cent of goods from within 30 miles of Exeter (and which are not first transported to
a distribution centre more than 30 miles away).45

The home towns

Whitstable, south east: a port in a storm

Famous for its Oyster Festival and burgeoning food culture, Whitstable tops the list
of our UK Home towns. A wide diversity of types of independent shops in the town,
increasingly supplemented by a growing artistic community, is reflected in its score
of 92.1.

Seafront views and a lively independent retail trade commanded price premiums in
the north Kent town’s property market. In recent years it has become popular as a
destination for second-home owners. House prices have risen, contributing capital
to sellers, but at the same time putting other locals’ purchasing budgets under
strain. So the viability of the wider community - including of its historic harbour -
remain uncertain.

Whitstable’s harbour is steeped in history. A working fishing port since the 18"
century, it was one of the first towns to get a railway. But the port’s South Quay,
formerly a flourishing centre for employment and fishing, is now under-used and in
need of renewal.

In 2005 Canterbury City Council, municipal owners of Whitstable’s harbour, made
public its intention to have South Quay redeveloped, and invited comments on a
range of options. 300 people responded, overwhelmingly supporting marine-based
employment and leisure activities, and rejecting housing or hotel facilities.

A pressure group, Whitstable Harbour Watch, was formed and quickly grew to
1,500 members. The group drew on deep suspicion between the city council and
Whitstable residents. “Canterbury has no vision of a living identity for Whitstable
beyond tourism and leisure”, said WHW'’s Rita O'Brien in 2009. “The indifference
and inertia we encounter from their councillors when we attempt dialogue, is
something to behold”.

Re-imagining the high street 20



53

In 2006 the council launched a second phase of its marketing. Inviting plans from
developers, it suggested the 300 metre long stretch of dockside would be ideal for
facilities such as housing, cinemas, restaurants and a public space. Three outline
plans were tabled. Allied Land plc envisaged shop units with a supermarket at the
end of the quay; townsfolk suspected interest from Tesco. Kent brewers Shepherd
Neame suggested a pub. Olympian Homes proposed housing and a restaurant
with distinctive ramped access.

Whitstable Harbour Watch organised a petition opposing all the schemes. Nearly
18,000 people signed in opposition, half of them visitors to the town. In November
2008 the council’s planners bowed to the protesters’ will, rejecting all the schemes
as unsuitable for South Quay. According to Peter Banbury of Harbour Watch,

the town’s folk remain anxious to put forward their own sustainable and creative
alternatives for the site.

Interviewed in 2009, Peter highlighted the need to respond to changing times:
“Conventional thinking has been to see towns like Whitstable only in terms of their
past, exploiting this for tourism. To preserve a living community, we can challenge
this view. Changing times demand that we do challenge it.”

Instead of suggesting a number of particular buildings or facilities, Harbour Watch
propose a series of values to underpin the development process, which include:46

® Celebrating local distinctiveness, building on the traditional imagination and
inventiveness of Whitstable.

® Developing a local culture in which environmental, social and economic
sustainability are co-dependent.

® Commit to the effective use of all its resources — human, material and
economic — to ensure maximum effect with minimum means.

® Change things for the better, and not for the sake of change itself.

® Support the local independent businesses that give the town its diverse
character and resist the blandness of corporate chains.

@ Develop projects that benefit its residents and attract visitors, and do not
consider one to the exclusion of the other.

® Continue to develop and adapt over time, in a process of continuous renewal.

Crediton, south west: living in the shadow of the behemoth

Less than 10 miles from Exeter, the rural market town Crediton, benefits from a
near-idyllic lifestyle — good community spirit, glorious Devon countryside and great
shopping: an independent butcher, two bakers, two delicatessens and even a
family-owned general store all serve the town centre as well as a monthly farmers
market.

A rating of 84 from volunteer pollsters on our 100 point scale positions Crediton as
one of the UK's home high streets. Included in that score is a heavy weighting for
its diversity of shop types: the high street boasts 19 different types of outlet, out of a
maximum possible 26.

The perfect spot to open a superstore, thought Tesco. Already with a small store in
the town, in September 2008 Tesco won planning permission for a grocery barn,
in-store café, petrol station and car park together covering 5,500 square metres —
the size of a football pitch — all to rise on low-lying ground to the south of the town.
At the end of 2009 the new store opened its doors, the eighth major supermarket
within a radius of 15 miles. 450 car spaces are provided, testifying to Tesco’s own
estimates during initial submissions that the store will push 30 per cent more traffic
at peak times along Crediton high street. A planning condition compels the store to

Re-imagining the high street 21



54

offer two hours free parking, in theory allowing shoppers to visit the high street. Yet
that is more than 800 metres distant.

Section 106 crumbs dropped by Tesco as part of the development included an
up to £2 million contribution towards a new link road, relieving the busy single-
carriageway A377, already notorious for poor air quality; £300,000 for the bus
companies; £15,000 towards railway station improvements. The new link must be
built within ten years of planning approval, with an estimated cost of £8mn - the
balance of funding having to be found from an ever tightening public purse. 47

Although before the store opened, opinion among Crediton shopkeepers was
divided, precedents for a big store’s impact on the area’s high streets are not good.
Crediton’s Transition Town campaigners warned Mid-Devon’s district planners
during submissions about the experience 12 miles away of just such an out-of-town
development on Tiverton, where Tiverton’s Chamber of Trade recorded a 30 percent
drop in local trade.

After careful consideration, David Nation, a Crediton councillor on both town and
district councils, voted in favour of Tesco’s scheme on Mid Devon'’s planning
committee, supporting his electorate’s pleas for a bigger, closer supermarket,
noting that the town centre’s existing Somerfields (now a refurbished Morrisons)
supermarket was heavily over-shopped, reputedly then being the chain’s most
profitable store in the UK.

Richard Adams, town councillor and third generation owner of Adams Hardware on
Crediton, high street, said he believed the edge-of-town superstore would have a
detrimental effect. “It'll offer shoppers a lot of their shopping under one roof. We will
have to fight harder to attract custom”.

Yet, as one local protestor wrote to the planning inquiry in March 2009, “If Tesco
appears in Crediton, Crediton stands a good chance of rapidly developing into
another Tesco town. The present atmosphere of a busy little market town is likely
to change into one with a practically dead high street”. In the mean time a strategy
has been developed by the local Transition Town group Sustainable Crediton which
included supporting thriving locally owned businesses and local shops. The Tesco
development increased the challenge of achieving this.48

Linda Lever, a spokesperson for Sustainable Crediton, said “the high street is

now very noticeably quieter. However, there are a great many people in the

town who boycott Tesco, which is not nearly as busy as predicted. We are doing

our best to promote local produce and retailers with our new website www.
creditonlocalproduce.co.uk launched at the recent, very well attended Crediton Food
Festival.”

Skipton: the people’s high street

Negotiating with a national chain store to pay for hanging flower baskets outside its
store might not seem a major step in ensuring community resilience. But for Dave
Parker, Chief Officer of Skipton Town Council in north Yorkshire, such small details
have their place alongside big questions of commercial strategy. Caring for such
tasks typifies his role, he believes, in managing relationships in one of Britain’s most
resilient rural communities.

Skipton’s high street, commercial hub of the 14,000-strong market town, won
the Academy of Urbanism’s ‘Great Street’ award for 2009. Praising the street’s
sensitively maintained heritage and well maintained fabric, the Academy’s judges
singled out Skipton’s well developed structures of local accountability, and “a high
level of social and economic engagement, all contributing to a sense of vibrancy”.

An active Chamber of Commerce, plus responsive relationships at three levels

of government - town, district and county - favour strong civic engagement in
Skipton’s decision-making, according to Dave Parker. With the establishment of a
town manager post in 2003, (initially funded in partnership by regional development

Re-imagining the high street 22



55

agency Yorkshire Forward, Craven District Council and Skipton’s town council, and
for the past three years funded entirely by the town council) answered a clear need
to promote the town as a tourist destination, expanding its tradition of festivals and
seasonal markets. But the role widened into one co-ordinating wider concerns of
economic development and heritage preservation across the public and private
sectors.

The lie of the land is Skipton’s single biggest aid in defending itself from over-
development. Located in spectacular countryside on the edge of a National Park,
no large level plot exists for an out-of-town supermarket. Big chains like Morrisons,
Tesco and Boots all serve the town. But they compete in the high street on the
same scale as long-established family businesses.

Quirks of history and of land tenure strengthen the sense of civic belonging. Stalls
in the four-day-a-week market pay rent not to the town council, but to the private
owners of adjacent buildings.

“People can be very critical about changes in the town, but that shows they feel
protective, that they love the place”, said Dave.49

Signing up for the Sustainable Communities Act, Craven District council has
recently committed to greater localised consultation. But traders in Skipton’s centre
had already blazed their own localism trail by forming a Business Improvement
District (BID). Launched by the then Office of the Deputy Prime Minister in 2003,
BIDs allow traders in a defined area to vote to add an extra 1 per cent on their own
business rates for up to five years. A vote by businesses controlling 75 per cent of
the rateable value in the BID zone has set up the venture.

The Chamber of Trade spent two years persuading its members to join the BID
scheme which is expected to raise more than £500,000 over five years to be spent
on further festival marketing, on improving car parking, and on better signage and
street furniture.50 “In a town that wants to attract visitors, appearances count a lot",
said Dave.

Although the recession has had an impact on the area, the Woolworths site was
quickly occupied by the Yorkshire Trading Company. The town’s active management
and network of commercial and personal relationships, shared goals for creating
prosperity and decision-making gives it greater resilience than its neighbours.

Brentford: community planning in action

Brentford’s rating as London’s top home town, with a score of 84.6 among the
capital's communities surveyed, does not mean it avoids serious, persistent
challenges in regeneration. Yet the area’s ambitious, community-based drive to
secure social cohesion and prosperity offer a template for successful management
of mid-tier urban centres elsewhere in the UK.

Upwards-only rent reviews for shopkeepers, and planning blight resulting from
rumoured waves of development which have surfaced then vanished, are just two
of the significant issues being confronted — and overcome by local people.

Few would ever accuse Brentford of being glamorous. With a historic decline in
light industry, land use and housing under pressure and employment in flux, the
challenges are acute. The high street is among London’s most diverse: in the
sample section our volunteers counted 19 types of shop, and only six national
chains.

In recognition, councillors, residents and local businesses launched the Brentford
high street Steering Group at a meeting in January 2007 attended by more than
150 people.®! LB Hounslow’s Community Investment Fund and nef both assisted
then and afterwards. Together the project partners perfected local participation
technigues based on nef's HighStreet UK, Planning for Real approaches, and
Transition Town -style ‘envisioning’.

Re-imagining the high street 23



56

Clone Town 2009 National Results

falys
PISlsisppnH
Aaupm
si6ay Joubog
yuomyoie
uojbuljiem
Moonen
yuompag
weyuieq
UulyoyH
uojaIo
191s9YyoH
J0SpUIp
abpugqinols
Pliojx0
poomuwieyaioqg
pl10jai9H
yimishiaqy
adioyjunog
usypewe)
auojspie|n
peayuspie|
J9)sayaioq
S)BOUSASS
S[I9M 26puqun)
Apjeoxany
aouezuad
lIvIsny 1S
saujwng
puabpug
nsueyt
a|siped
PIS1S3[0de N
J9j1oxg
Buipeay
abpuque)

Clone Town

24

Re-imagining the high street



57

L'c6
L'L6
9'G8
1r's8
0'v8
L'€8
L'€8
£'€e8
8'c8
€c8
6’18
8’18
§'08
008
0'08
R:7
clLL
G'9L
€9
8'G.L
SvL
€'€L
gl
€L
oL
7’69
9’29
€719
9'99
G99
G99

9|qeisHym
Jjoouqgaiys
uojueULION
uojbuiio]
uoypaid
abpug uapgsH
ssauly
ybis|peH
uAimaN
YydimioH
lobueg
yomiag
uonem

BaS U0 spieuoaT is
abeuemsg
Kingpa
Ainquojse|n
ayejAoH
uoybug maN
(TTETTY
uoydnis

Keg Aspiym
sueqiy 1S
Jaeiuells
MOJ|SUIM
KingsajAy
piojiepy
Yyreusad
alawa|seH
SMalpuy 1S
leqsianod

100

90

Home Town

o
5
-
]
Q
o
e
e,
m

auloqidys
yyiompiuay

samaT

A9 uapien) ukmdp
9AOH

seg

auinoqysy

Aquny 1sam
Yyyojson

Bunjom

yommuwoag }sam
[lemsaH
}OIBWIMO}S

19 EWMBN
ybnoiogieH e
%997

abeuanals

Yinipay

uojuaid

ynowap

25

Re-imagining the high street



58

From day one, the widest possible consultation was a key priority for the Steering
Group. Half a dozen sub-groups and workshops sprang up to harness the
community’s dynamism; over 100 individuals and local organisations are named on
its statement of community vision, published in November 2007. Complementing
official and governmental processes, this vision encompassed all aspects of the
sustainable regeneration of the town centre, everything from land use, energy
descent, and economic wellbeing, to differing ‘liveability’, priorities of youth, seniors
and minority communities, and on to rents, street lighting and public safety. It
resulted in 114 recommendations to assess developments by.52

The key to success, according to Andrew Dakers, ward councillor (2006-10) and a
guiding light behind the group, is the community identifying a vision of a future that
it wants for itself. Constantly in sight is “world-class sustainable development that is
also financially deliverable”. The group is supported on a cross-party basis.

Chief among issues addressed by Brentford’s community problem-solving has
been restoring economic viability, especially in retail. Late in 2005 Jersey-based
company Geronimo Ltd purchased freeholds along one side of the high street, later
completing more acquisitions to emerge as the centre’s major landowner. Soon
afterwards developer Ballymore Ltd’s option to buy the site was revealed, once
Geronimo had obtained planning permission for a major mixed use housing and
retail development.

Other community groups may have chosen to confront the developers. Brentford’s
Steering Group sought dialogue instead. Representatives of Ballymore and
Geronimo responded to invitations to attend all the workshops in 2007. In
conseqguence the landowners reviewed the group’s recommendations and
provided written feedback on aspects of the proposed urban design approach. In a
further effort to support the community, the landowners removed boards on some
empty high street shops. With the economic downturn delaying redevelopment in
2009 they started making the units available again on short leases to help bring
additional vitality back to the town centre, and by May 2010 they were nearly all
reoccupied.

Three years on and the Steering Group has made a number of key interventions:
introducing Christmas lights to the town centre, securing funding for a small car park
to capture more passing trade, launching the Wedge Card loyalty card scheme,

a town centre website and the town’s first ever public event — a celebration of St
George’s Day — in the historic Market Place.

Unfortunately, due to a combination of the economic downturn and the developers
standing down their development team, dialogue largely stalled, giving campaigners
their one serious setback. In autumn 2009 however, a new collaborative approach
emerged. With funding secured from Ballymore and the local area committee S106
fund, Ballymore and the High Street Steering Group commissioned a joint workshop
and report from The Prince’s Foundation for the Built Environment. The process
worked through the complex urban design required for the site and provides

the basis of a brief for the urban planner that will be hired to work up a planning
application for the site.53

In the current economic downturn, upwards-only rent reviews are a major concern
for the 50 or so independent high street traders who remain tenants of Hounslow
borough. Responding to the local councillors approaches, borough officers are
seeking flexible solutions and discussions are now progressing on redefining

the rent frameworks. This would substitute lower turnover of tenants and reduced
volatility of income in the medium-long term as a goal in place of maximising short
term revenue. The proposed framework would consider the type of businesses that
are missing from the retail mix when evaluating rental income potential and the
marketing of vacant retail units.

Re-imagining the high street 26



959
Part 3: Communities fighting back

‘Never doubt that a small group of thoughtful, committed citizens

can change the world; indeed, it's the only thing that ever has.”
Margaret Mead

The current crisis offers a huge opportunity to re-imagine our towns and cities. We
have been led to believe that there is only one way of doing things, that markets as
currently manifested are immutable parts of some greater natural order. This system
has eroded the individuality of our towns and cities, and robbed us of their civic
identities.

The good news is that alternative models are evolving. Their defining characteristics
are that they are human scale, rooted in their communities and encourage the
human interactions that make life worthwhile.

Winning back where we live - from the grassroots up

As a number of our home town case studies have shown, although the chains have
continued to dominate our towns and cities, away from the high street, a myriad of
local alternatives have been developing. As we take this opportunity to take stock, it
is important that we identify and learn from examples of places that have managed
to maintain their identity in the face of the power wielded by our largest chain
retailers.

Some of our home town case studies demonstrate successful alternatives to the
multiples’ dominance on the high street, and others continue to battle it. Since our
last Clone Town Report new policies (in particular the Sustainable Communities
Act) have offered opportunities for residents to take local action. In this section we
highlight a range of examples which show that we can build more resilient local
economies.

In the last couple of years a whole range of campaigns have sprung up defending
the distinctiveness of our local economies and communities. There are too many to
list here, but campaigns which have captured the national attention and supported
local action include:

The Federation of Small Business’s (FSB) ‘Keep Trade Local’ Manifesto and
Campaigning Roadshow which has travelled across the UK to raise awareness of
the threat facing local businesses. The FSB has also developed Small Business
Engagement Accords with Local authorities to help small businesses through the
recession and continues to campaign to maintain a local post office network to
keep the high street alive and keep trade local.54

The Evening Standard’s ‘Save our Small Shops Campaign’ puts pressure on
London’s Mayors to help small businesses, in particular through using Section 106
agreements in new developments, and rallies broad support for distinctive high
streets and independents.55

The Campaign for Real Ale’s (CAMRA) campaign to save British pubs, a voluntary
organisation with over 100,000 members, has run successful campaigns such

as the Community Pub Week, the Beer Drinkers and Pub Goers Charter, support
for micro-breweries and the promotion of festivals and awards. In the run up to

the election CAMRA signed up 650 election hopefuls to reform the ‘beer tie’
arrangements in the UK pubs industry, one of the key causes identified by CAMRA
of high beer prices and wholesale pub closures.56

Re-imagining the high street 27



60

In June 2010 CAMRA put its considerable support behind a Parliamentary Bill

by Nigel Adams, Conservative MP for Selby and Ainsty to help protect valued
community pubs and other local services. The Protection of Local Services
(Planning) Bill aims to give local councils in England the power to close loopholes
in planning law which allow local services such as pubs, post offices, local shops
and community centres to be demolished without the need to seek planning
permission.

Brixton’s bustling street market, Caribbean food and culture and thriving music and
arts scene have not, it appears, given it immunity to the clone town threat. Over half
the stores surveyed on its high street are now chains, according to our 2009 survey,
moving it from a border town in our 2005 survey to a clone town today. Next to the
smart new tube station entrance there is the odd stall selling joss sticks and new
age preachers advertising the worlds’ imminent collapse, but behind them are the
familiar facades of Sainsbury’s Local, Vodaphone, WH Smith, Iceland, Boots and
Footlocker.

Meanwhile, Brixton’s landlords and property owners seem unconcerned about

the distinctive future of the town centre. According to Philippe Castaing, a local
restaurant entrepreneur and active Transition Town member, Brixton is one of the
most expensive high streets in London in terms of commercial rent, a major barrier
for independent businesses.

For Phillippe the answer is for the community to get a genuine stake in the future
development of Brixton by purchasing land for themselves. He heads-up Brixton
Green, a voluntary organisation now developing plans fora Community Land Trust
(CLT) to be situated behind Brixton market. CLTs work by enabling occupiers to
pay for the use of buildings and services at prices they can afford, while the value
of land, subsidies, planning gain and other equity benefits are permanently locked
in, on behalf of them and future occupiers, by the not-for-profit CLT. For Phillippe,
the CLT model is the only way to enable small businesses to get a foothold in
Brixton as most of the premises available are too large or too expensive. The CLT
also provides the opportunity to turn Brixton in to a green ‘hub’ and centre for
environmental innovation. Phillippe says:

“The plan is to have a genuinely mixed use for the CLT, to provide and
manage low cost and middle range housing, to have smaller workspaces
for independent businesses, to have opportunities for retail but also training,
education and to set up new kinds of green businesses like repair and
recycling workshops. We also plan to have an anaerobic digestion plant

on the road, so that the site will produce its own energy and do something
useful with much of the organic waste we will get from the market.”

The challenge for CLTs has always been raising the capital to purchase land in
urban areas which is much more expensive than in rural areas. Brixton Green plan
to do this through a community share issue and Phillippe’s initial research suggests
the people of Brixton will be keen to find an alternative way of investing their
savings than with discredited banks.

Philippe’s optimism in the Brixton community is well founded. Local residents,
including the Friends of Brixton Market and traders themselves recently saw off a
bid by developer, London Associated Properties, to turn the market into a ‘West-end
style shopping precinct full of high-end retail stores’.57 In the face of massive local
opposition, and falling prices for residential property, the developer announced in
March that it would abandon its plans for redevelopment because of concerns over
the future of its traders.58

The historic market, which has been running since the 1870s, now looks to be safe
in the short-term. Campaigners welcomed the turnaround but remain concerned
that London Associated Properties could change its mind if the economy picks up.
They now plan to make demolition impossible by getting the site listed.

Re-imagining the high street 28



61

Loyalty cards, long the preserve of large commercial organisations, such as
international airlines in the form of ‘air-miles’, hotel chains or the supermarket giants
who use loyalty cards to build massive databases’ on consumer behaviour, tempt
continued spending through discounts, and plan their just-in-time distribution
systems.

However now a significant local-shop loyalty movement is growing in the UK,
appealing to people’s attachments to where they live and their desires to support
their local shops and services, as much as the financial incentives on offer.

Penzance, the tenth highest-scoring Clone Town on our 2009 survey, launched a
loyalty card in January 2009 following the collapse of chains stores Woolworths and
Adams, as well as independent stores. Promoted in conjunction with the Federation
of Small Business’s ‘Keep Trade Local’ road show, the scheme attracted more than
2,500 shoppers on its launch and 50 local shops. Just two weeks later, the chief
executive of Penwith District Council recommended to the full council that it should
approve the use of £10,000 from existing budgets to cover the cost of extending
the scheme to neighbouring Hayle and St lves.59

One of the most successful local loyalty schemes has been the Wedgecard. It aims
to revitalise communities by offering a reward to customers for shopping locally.
Wedgecard also provides additional marketing and publicity for local shops who
can put special offers in the fortnightly Wedgecard newsletter.

Starting with 80 shops around Bloomsbury in December 2006, the scheme has
grown to 1,400 shops throughout London and has sold 30,000 cards to London
customers through the internet, Business Improvement Districts (BIDS) and through
shops themselves. Wedge is working in over 20 areas in London, and most recently
launched in Kensington and Chelsea supported by the Borough Council, with 560
shops signing up to be part of the scheme in April 2010 .

Other, smaller schemes have had similar success. ‘Haselmere Rewards’ in Surrey,
has over 20 shops signed up, has issued 4,500 cards and is run jointly with the
Chamber of Trade.60 Local currencies, such as the Totnes Pound61 in Devon and
Lewes Pound in Sussex, should have a similar beneficial effect for local shops and
keep even more money circulating locally.

Community Buy-Outs

The credit crunch and collapse in price of retail and home properties has suddenly
created a window of opportunity for communities concerned about the collapse

of their high streets. According to a recent article in The Guardian, there has been
a sudden growth in Community buy-outs of pubs, petrol stations and local stores,
with local people putting up their own money and taking a share in any profits.62
In Hebden Bridge, the local authority, Calderdale Council, transferred ownership

of the Town Hall to a residents group, Hebden Bridge Community Association Ltd
on April 1 2010.63 There has been a steady rise in the number of Community Land
Trusts (CLTs) established in the UK. Cornwall CLT Limited (CCLT) is a charitable
organisation established in 2007 to provide good quality affordable housing to
meet local needs either directly or by assisting local community land trusts to
become established. In the face of falling property prices landlords, who were
previously reluctant to sell properties, are now reported to be accepting reasonable
offers. Planning authorities have also become more reluctant to allow change of
use applications, allowing landlords to cash in on higher returns from houses,
particularly when faced by a sustained local campaign, according to Campaign
group, the Pub is the Hub.

Tewin Village Post Office, Hertfordshire64

In May 2007, after 150 years serving the local community, the post office and
general store in the village of Tewin, Hertfordshire, closed. 150 people turned up
to a meeting to discuss its closure and with advice from the Plunkett Foundation
(VIRSA) the villagers formed an industrial and provident society to manage the
shop. They received a grant of £12,000, took out a further £12,000 from a social

Re-imagining the high street 29



62

lender, Cooperative and Community Finance, and the villagers came up with

the same amount through various fundraising schemes. Within nine months the
post office was up and running again, after volunteers had pitched in to refit and
redecorate the store. Now 60 rotating volunteers from the village run the post
office, and an unused storeroom has been converted into a café and community
area. Older people who would otherwise have had to rely on a very limited bus
service to reach shops now have basic facilities at their doorstep.

Community-based business support

Putting in place appropriate, community-based enterprise support is key to
helping a thriving local economy to emerge. nef’s experience of supporting 34
communities to deliver enterprise support projects over the past 8 years has
demonstrated that the core elements of an effective small business support
approach should include: support being made available to all new and existing
small businesses in the area, using a community-based coaching approach to
support those businesses, which draws on local networks of support to assist
entrepreneurs to break down barriers that stand in the way of their success.

Using policy to work for your community

Since the publication of nef’s Clone Town Britain report in 2005, there have
been some positive developments in planning and legislation, much of it driven
by local communities and campaigners. A range of legislative powers now exist
that provide communities with the power to reassert control over the way in
which their local economies develop and build more sustainable communities.

Box 4: St Leonards on Sea, East Sussex (home town)

St Leonards on Sea, which lies just to the west of its larger and more famous neighbour Hastings, was originally
founded in Victorian times by the famous architect Decimus Burton — responsible for much of Bloomsbury — as an
up-market seaside resort for the smart London set.

Like many English seaside resorts, St Leonards saw a down turn during the 1970’s and 1980’s as its traditional
clientele chose foreign holidays over stays at English resorts. As a result, many of the hotels and guest houses
closed or were turned into accommodation for relocated Social Security claimants or refugees. Local independent
businesses closed across the main shopping streets of Kings Road, London Road, Norman Road and the seafront,
and were replaced by charity or second-hand shops.

By the late-1990'’s, the Borough of Hastings and St Leonards had been recognised as an area of deprivation and
the beginnings of a strategic regeneration strategy were put in place. In 2006, a programme funded by the Local
Economic Growth Initiative saw a new ground-up approach to regeneration come into the area, with a number of
enterprise-focused projects looking to encourage different business sectors within the town, such as tourism and
hospitality, film and television, and social enterprises. Amongst these was a BizFizz business coaching project6>

which aims to support new and existing businesses specifically in areas of high deprivation, including Central St

Leonards.

The BizFizz project almost immediately attracted a high level of demand to support new enterprises from the Central
St Leonards area, coming as it did at a time when an increasing number of incomers from London were choosing
to relocate to the area for a better quality of life, specifically attracted by the diversity and ‘shabby-chic’ quality of the
area.

Within two years the BizFizz project had supported 140 clients from the St Leonards area alone, and a vibrant local
network of support has developed for the local entrepreneurs. With the Central St Leonards shopping area having
retained its traditional high street buildings, and with surviving long-standing businesses such as independent
grocers, butchers and bakers, many people began to explore start-up retail opportunities. In Norman Road, which
had a long-standing cluster of antique dealers, new businesses have been established offering retro and collectable
furniture and clothing, home watres, gifts and many items made by local artists and crafts people.

Along the seafront and under Marine Court, a cluster of new galleries have opened around the Hastings Arts Forum,
which was formed in 2003 to act as a voice for the large local artist community opened its own gallery in 2005.
Cafe, textile gallery and gift shop Aardvark joined this cluster in 2008, receiving a joint runner-up award from Coast
Magazine for best seaside café just six months after opening.

Re-imagining the high street 30



63

The challenge is to ensure that the opportunity presented by the recession and
credit crunch for rethinking the way both developments are designed, and how
existing local businesses are protected, is not missed.

The most important new piece of legislation to emerge is the Sustainable
Communities Act (SCA), which nef lobbied for, as part of the Local Works coalition
of over 90 organisations. The Act, which became law on 23 October 2007, gives the
government a legal duty to ‘assist local authorities in promoting the sustainability

of local communities’. Councils are invited to opt into using the Act and submit
proposals to central government identifying changes which will help them promote
the sustainability of local communities.

The scope of the Act is very broad, covering economic, social and environmental
issues, and most importantly it does not limit the type of action that can be
proposed, provided the action is within that broad scope. The Act very firmly
focuses attention on what local people decide they need to promote the
sustainability of their area. 66

Sustainable communities are defined in the Act as having four categories: 67

1. Local economies, e.g. promoting local shops, local businesses, local public
services and local jobs.

2. Environment, e.g. promoting local renewable energy, protecting green spaces.

3. Social inclusion, e.g. protecting local public services and alleviating fuel poverty
and food poverty.

4. Democratic involvement, e.g. promoting local people participating in local
decision making.

Local authorities (including county councils) can propose a transfer of specific
monies and function from central to local control. Some examples of what the Act
could be used for include:

@ Keeping open essential community services like Post Offices.
® Promoting small businesses by increasing their rate relief.

@ Forcing large out of town superstores to pay local domestic rates on their huge
car parks.

® Promoting local renewable energy, e.g. by removing the restrictive barriers
relating to the local grid.

® Promoting local food and other products, e.g. by giving rate relief to businesses
that earn 50 per cent of their turnover from selling local food and goods.

This Act represents a powerhouse of possibilities for local communities to take back
control of their local economies. In the first round of proposals, 200 were shortlisted
and put before the Secretary of State for consideration.

In June 2009 the ‘Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction

Bill became law. Central to this legislation are new rights for citizens to have more
information and influence over local decision making and the shaping and provision
of local services, primarily through the use of participatory budgeting. The Act aims
to strengthen local democracy, promote regional and local economic development
and ensure fairness in construction contracts. The Act also involves a number of
new ‘duties’ on local government including:

® A duty to promote democracy, stimulate local debate, improve democratic
understanding and take-up of civic roles.

Re-imagining the high street 31



64

® Alegal duty on local authorities to respond to petitions.

® Extending the ‘duty to involve’ so that local authorities ensure government
bodies and agencies involve local people in their decision-making processes.

® A new duty on local authorities to prepare an assessment of the economic
conditions in their area.68

To make them effective, these proposals will require a major shift in local
democratic structures and practices. It is up to communities and local civil society
groups to put pressure on local authorities and other statutory bodies to test the
limits of this legislation.

The Taylor Review of Rural Economy and Affordable Housing, which reported last
year, argues for root and branch reform of the planning system which places the
sustainability of rural areas at its heart.69 Specific recommendations include:

® New planning policies to shift growth of market towns from bland housing
estates to create instead new mixed-use neighbourhoods.

® New neighbourhoods and development of extensions to existing communities
with the provision of shops and community facilities, workplaces and open
spaces.

® A new ‘community-led affordable housing’ initiative for smaller rural
communities.

® Flexible new planning rules to encourage village businesses.

® Planning policy (Planning Policy Statements and Planning Policy Guidance)
should be reviewed as a whole to simplify and end conflicting messages over
sustainable development to ensure economic, social and environmental factors
are properly balanced.

@ ‘Tick box planning’ based on a narrow range of sustainability criteria should
be transformed into processes encouraging a long-term vision of what rural
communities can and should be, to end the ‘sustainability trap’ in which
villages deemed ‘unsustainable’ continue to decline.

Reacting to The Taylor Review a number of national organisations and groups

concerned with the economic, social and environmental needs of the countryside

joined together under the banner of the Rural Coalition. In October 2009 the Rural

Coalition published their prospectus The Future is Rural too, which campaigns

for reforms that will create a strong, confident and sustainable countryside. The

prospectus calls for:

@ Vibrant villages

® Thriving local economies

® Flourishing Towns

® Great local services

® Empowering communities

In the report the Rural Coalition writes:

“Only if people in rural communities have ready access to local schools,

local jobs, local shops and pubs and homes will they and their children
thrive, and will the nation meet its environmental and economic needs.”

Re-imagining the high street 32



65

Nine Meals from Anarchy

Clone towns have not just eroded the individuality of our towns and cities leaving
them uniform and dull. The dynamic that they have been a part of has divided
communities and, by luring us from active citizens into passive consumers, they
have contributed to an erosion of our democracy. And, as we face the additional
challenges of climate change and peak oil, we find that the cloning of our towns
and cities has created a brittle infrastructure unable to respond to these challenges.
Town and City centres do not develop in isolation: there is a bigger picture that
contributes to the brittleness of our settlements.

Understanding this bigger picture is crucial to determining what antidotes
are necessary to address Clone Town Britain, and what will support Britain's
transformation towards a low carbon future.

The protestors blockade of fuel refineries and distribution depots which brought the
country to a near standstill in 2000 revealed just how vulnerable reliance on a few
very large chain retailers has left our local economies and communities. The fragile
foundation of our over-reliance on oil and highly centralised distribution systems, lay
starkly exposed. Another three days of protests, supermarket bosses claimed, would
have left their shelves empty. We were, in effect, only nine meals from anarchy.”0

In the final section of this report we are calling for communities to take action to
transform their high streets to support a low carbon, high well-being future.

Re-imagining the high street 33



66
Part 4. Re-imagining your local high street to
support a low carbon, high well-being future

Town centres are still largely regarded as theatres of consumption or
destinations to visit briefly. At nef, we believe that our town and city
centres should be more than mere shopping catchment areas.

Jan Gehl is the Danish architect credited with transforming Copenhagen. Four
times as many people now go to the centre of Copenhagen than in the past, an
achievement realised by recognising that shopping should never be the main
reason for coming into a city. “If you asked people twenty years ago why they came
into the city, they would have said it was to shop. But if you ask them today, they
would say it was because they wanted to go into town”.’1

We need a different development logic, one which includes residents in the
planning and delivery of schemes which intimately affect how they live, and
recognises that public well-being is the over-arching success criteria, not merely
growth of the retail sector.

There are many examples of ways in which urban spaces have already been, and
are being, transformed. With a little imagination, our high streets could become
places where we go to actively engage with other people in our communities;
places where shopping is just one small part of a rich mix of activities including
working, sharing, exchanging, playing and learning new skills. As the hub of our
communities, the high street could become the place where we begin to build a
more sustainable world. The current economic crisis offers a huge opportunity to
take a long hard look at our high streets, and ask if they are really serving our needs.

Reducing our environmental impact

The ecological footprint,”2 the number of hectares required to provide each of us
with food, clothing and other resources, of the average UK resident is 5.30 global
hectares (Gha). Or put another way, the number of planets needed to sustain the
whole world at the average UK level of consumption would be 3.1 planets. This
compares with the average figures for the US of 9.5 Gha (5 planets), Germany 4.2
Gha (2.2 planets), China 2.1 Gha (1.2 planets), and with India and most African
countries at 1.0 Gha or less (0.5 planets or less).”3

In response to the challenge of climate change, the UK Government has set a
carbon reduction target of 34 per cent below 1990 levels by 2020, increasing to

an 80 per cent reduction by 2050. The CO, emissions (including embodied CO2)

of the average UK resident is 12.08 tonnes,”4 which is broken down by sectors in
Figure 4. To achieve our carbon reduction targets this has to be reduced to 4 tonnes
per annum.’5

To achieve these levels of reduction will require us to re-engineer our economic
system, not only at the global and national level, but most importantly at the
levels most immediately felt by individuals, families and communities through the
environment on their doorsteps, the goods and services that they produce and
consume, and the sense of well-being experienced.

Combating climate change locally will require both adaptation and resilience
characteristics to be designed into the structure of the economy. Adaptation to
climate change, or resource scarcity, can be thought of as the long-term increase
in the capacity to cope with changes in circumstances (e.g. unforeseen or periodic
hazardous events). Adaptation at the regional and local level will require the
‘climate-proofing’ of infrastructure in such key areas as reducing the energy and

Re-imagining the high street 34



67

Figure 4: Ecological Footprint of the average UK resident

Home Energy Use Transport

18% 13%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%

Figure 5: CO, Emissions of the average UK resident

Housing Home Energy Use Transport

6% 24% 26% 11%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%

resource intensity of our transport systems, waste management, energy and food
systems. Inherent in adapting to climate change is the underlying need for us to
consume less in absolute terms, and to re-localise the production of the goods and
services that we do consume as much as possible.

Resilience can broadly be defined as the ability of a system (social, economic or
ecological) to cope with external shocks as they arise. In measuring a system’s
resilience, the Tyndall Centre for Climate Change Research refers to indicators that
demonstrate the system’s “ability to (a) absorb shocks and retain its basic function,
(b) self organise (social institutions and networks), and (c) innovate and learn in
face of disturbances” 76

Redesigning our high streets to support a low carbon future means ultimately
displacing retail chains (as large users of carbon) and replacing them with locally-
embedded alternatives on our high streets, with people using their local high streets
more. Supporting the development of resilience characteristics will mean local
people taking an active lead, in partnership with public and private agencies, in
re-designing their high streets to be more sustainable and reflective of their local
needs.

Understanding Well-being

In 2008, nef was commissioned by the UK Government’s Foresight Project on
Mental Capital and Well-being to review the inter-disciplinary work of over 400
scientists from across the world. The aim was to identify a set of evidence-based
actions to improve well-being, which individuals would be encouraged to build
into their daily lives. nef identified social relationships, levels of physical activity,
awareness, learning and reciprocity as key drivers of improved functioning and

Re-imagining the high street 35

Services  Services

80%

6%

80%

Consumables Private

6%

Public

11%

90%

onsumables Private  Public
Services Services

13%

90%

100%

* Capital Investments

100%

* Capital Investments



68

Figure 6: Embedding the five ways to well-being in design

Connect
Include physical and social infrastructure

to encourage connections between people.
Entice different groups of people together.

3e active

Structureindoor:

. and outdoor spaces

T oy lorincrease’activity!
DeSIgnlng in levels Q people’s

Give ~ personal and day-to-day lives:

Stimulate social well-being

opportunities .

for people to share,

exchange and

help one another.

—f
Take notice

Favourthebeautifil

Keep learning

Promoterocal historyaRutiaiplace! andithelunusual®
nicontext: Promote’ aii%h:—.li‘:)fl N Factoriin Spacefor
Inderstandingiofiplace andiits; elaxationfand!
nterdependence! »\/ith‘ﬂ:hor sommunities: reflectiont

positive experiences. Of these key five drivers of personal well-being identified,
both the strength of our social relationships and the extent to which we engage
in reciprocal behaviour with others are directly related to the well-being of our
communities.”” There is growing evidence that the homogenisation of our towns
and cities has undermined both of these critical aspects of our well-being.

Removing nature from our towns and cities undermines well-being and resilience.
Contact with the natural world has benefits for mental health.”8 Green spaces have
been shown to have positive benefits on social ties, mental health, physical health,
economic resilience, play activity, and crime.”’9 Research has found that green
spaces (such as allotments, parks and gardens) and spaces near water are highly
valued by people because they are relaxing and offer an escape from domestic
pressures,80 which supports the hypothesis that green space reduces mental
fatigue, ensuring that we are more able to assess and deal with the issues we face
in life.81

A landmark paper by behavioural Scientist Roger Ulrich published in Science

in 198482 provided empirical evidence to support what we have long known
instinctively. Ulrich found that patients recovered more quickly if their windows
overlooked trees rather than a brick wall. Ulrich has since gathered considerable
evidence that the restorative effects of nature scenes are felt within three to five
minutes. Views of vegetation or garden-like features increase levels of positive
feelings such as pleasantness and calm and reduce negatively toned emotions
such as fear, anger, and sadness. In a series of experiments, people exposed
to settings with plants and other nature had lower levels of fear and anger, and
reported far higher levels of positive feelings than those with a view of the built
environment.

Given the increasing understanding of the role that nature has in improving health

Re-imagining the high street 36



69

and reducing stress in hospitals, it follows that trees and plants would not only
significantly improve the urban environment, they would play a role in reducing the
stress of living and working in the city, and enhance personal and social well-being.

Time and the city

Even if we allow for the possibility of more nature in our towns, there is little
opportunity to stop and take notice. The way that we have built our cities has
exacerbated the tendency to live life at an ever-faster pace, where time is a
commodity to be bought and sold, and leisure to be purchased. As the economy
extracts ever-greater working hours, the evolution of the city has required that we
travel ever further at an ever-faster pace. According to the UKTime Use Survey
2005, the average time spent in travelling in the UK is 6 per cent of our time in a 24
hour period, in a year equating to 22 days.

The speed of our travel, and the single-mindedness of our journeys has eroded the
space for social interaction still further. One way to slow down would be if our towns
and cities were more pleasant places to spend time in.

Using well-being as a design guide means opening up the public space on the
high street to become more of an experience which links us to our community.

Transformation of our towns and cities

Transformation of our towns and cities is already underway: from every corner of

the country innovative, alternative models are emerging to fill the gaps left by the
closure of large chains. Each new venture is as original as the people who imagine
it, and in each a powerful antidote to the stupefying blandness of clone towns. They
are built on the belief that we can shape the world around us, openness to different
ways of thinking and active commitment to reshaping our communities. Whether
consciously, or unconsciously many of them also demonstrate that we can meet the
challenge of living within our environmental means.

There are other, small signs that the tide is turning. People are increasingly seeking
out authentic music, craft clubs are springing up across the country, bread-baking
courses are over-subscribed months in advance, and while analysts look to retail
sales figures for signs of economic recovery, the real resurgence is underway in the
skills that we are all rediscovering — skills that will equip us well for a more diverse
and vibrant future.

The Transition network is a remarkable example of a grassroots movement to re-
imagine and re-design local economies so they are less dependent on the fossil-
fuel intensive model of production and distribution that characterises Clone Towns.
The aim of the Transition network is to equip communities for the dual challenges of
climate change and peak oil, by building community resilience — which they define
as an area’s: “ability to function indefinitely and to live within its limits, and be able
to thrive for having done so.” 85

Lewes Transition

The market town of Lewes in East Sussex is well known for it independent spirit. Its
Guy Fawkes festivities, perhaps the biggest in the world, commemorate the burning
of 17 Protestant martyrs during the Marian Persecutions of 1555-1557 in front of
what is now the Town Hall. Until the mid-19th century these celebrations often spilt
over into violent riots attracting significant police presence from London. Nowadays
things are more peaceful at the seven Lewes bonfires.

Lewes ranked ninth best in our 2005 Clone Town Survey, reflecting its rich diversity
of local retailers, a popular farmers market and its reputation as a place for good
quality independent produce, drawing in visitors from around the South East. In the
current survey Lewes has dropped from being a Home to a Border Town, with 21
out of 55 shops on the high street counted as chain stores (although some of these
are small chains).

Re-imagining the high street 37



70

Adrienne Campbell, the local resident who conducted the survey and active
Transition member, had some explanations.86 A new Waitrose has led to a number
of upmarket food shops and couple of health food shops going out of business. In
addition it was felt that a draconian parking system run by the National Car Parks
put in place five years ago has led to some independents closing down because
shoppers are afraid of getting tickets. Previously there was more fixed parking time
available and the Chamber of Commerce is lobbying the district council to amend
the scheme.

Adrienne was also concerned that some smaller and less expensive food shops
have had to close as Lewes has become more upmarket and more expensive
precisely because it is not a clone town and attracts wealthy residents from nearby
London:

“These ‘Down from Londoners’ (DFLs) as they are known locally, have
pushed up house prices and, because there are more wealthy people,
shops have gone upmarket and some basic functional shops like foodshops
have been replaced by shops selling useless stuff. And basic food shops
can't afford the rent here. A great little fruit and veg shop round the corner
from me closed down and was replaced by a boutique because the owners
wanted more rent.”

If this story of chain encroachment and ‘boutique-isation’ is a familiar one, Lewes's
community response has certainly not been. Transition Town Lewes, which officially
launched in April 2007, has been one of the most active Transition Initiatives in the
UK.

The Lewes Pound, launched in September 2008, is a complementary currency,
redeemable for goods or services offered by exactly the kind of local independent
traders who are being squeezed out by competition from big chains, parking rules
and high rents. It is not intended to replace sterling, being redeemable with it at
one-to-one at three issuers in the town. But by using it, residents can help support
local producers and traders and raise awareness of the importance of shopping
locally. In the first issue, 30,000 Lewes Pounds were issued into circulation with the
initial print-run of 10,000 selling out completely on the launch of the currency.

150 businesses in the town signed up to accept Lewes pound banknotes and to
give them out in change to local shoppers. A number of stores are using the Lewes
Pound as a way of boosting their marketing by offering discounts and deals for
payment of goods in Lewes Pounds. The Lewes Pound Website keeps people up
to date by listing current offers as well as guidance on how to use the note.87 Other
traders are paying their own suppliers and staff in Lewes Pounds, who in turn spend
them with other Lewes businesses, thus creating a virtuous circle that benefits the
town.

Oliver van Heel, one of the team that created the Lewes Pound, noted:

“We wanted to give the Lewes community a reason to seek out and
choose local traders. We didn’t expect to have a huge economic impact
from the outset, but we have succeeded in raising awareness and starting
a conversation within Lewes about the impact residents can have in
stimulating the local economy.”

The small-scale local solutions that already exist provide the sleeping architecture
of a new system. If we choose to nurture and support grassroots initiatives and
blossoming individual skills, we could create more convivial town centres, insulate
against economic turmoil, enhance well-being, and support adaptation to climate
change and the consequences of depleting fossil fuel oil reserves.

Re-imagining the high street 38



71

Box 5: Low carbon high streets - focusing on transport and energy

To reduce carbon emissions from transport will require a reduction in overall traffic levels. For the high street, this
raises questions of finding innovative ways of ensuring easy access, and reducing the need for car use. Some
suggestions for doing this include:

Vehicle speed restrictions in built-up areas. For example, Hull has applied a 20mph speed limit in residential areas
covering 26 per cent of the city. Limits are self-enforced through structural transformation of the roads. The restrictions
dramatically reduced the number of serious injuries from road accidents and led to a £35 million saving in terms of
physical damage from accidents. Applied consistently, speed restrictions are likely to reduce car use and make other
transport modes, such as cycling and walking, more desirable.

Promoting bicycle use. There are a range of interventions that can support increasing bicycle use including
road planning, cyclist-specific traffic lights, personal travel planning, information provision, as well as working with
businesses to incentivise commuting by bicycle. It is also important to highlight the health and psychological well-
being benefits of the physical activity involved in cycling. Research shows that whilst drivers perceive cycling to be
inconvenient and stressful, cyclists themselves rate cycling to be just as convenient and far more relaxing than drivers
rate driving to be.88

Shared transport. \Where car transport is required — specifically when this is due to poor provision of public transport
systems in rural areas — there should be encouragement of car-sharing schemes, and community transport initiatives.

Shared streets. The underlying concept of the shared street system is one of integration, with an emphasis on the
community and the residential user. Pedestrians, children at play, bicyclists, parked cars, and moving cars all share
the same street space. Even though it seems these uses conflict with one another, the physical design is such that
drivers are placed in a position which requires them to exercise greater caution. Counter intuitively, this results in lower
accident levels.89

Reducing energy use
Forty per cent of UK carbon emissions come from buildings.90 To address this on
our high street we could:

Display SMART meter readings in high street windows to monitor process, and
support reducing energy use further.

Reduce night lighting in buildings.

Turn our buildings into energy generators through the use of solar panels and
small wind turbines.

Reclaiming Public Space

In Britain, town centre management tends to be a partnership between the
public and private sectors, which encourages large retail developments, and as
documented in this report leads to large soulless ‘malls’ (both indoor and out)

full of chain stores. These developments are put together by property developers
and local authorities using ‘land assembly’ powers and are justified as having
economic benefits when seeking planning permission. In many cases, the land
on which these malls are built was owned by local authorities and governed and
managed under the democratic principles of the country. Once the malls are built
they are in private hands and access to them is controlled by private owners.
Everyday activities are forbidden — no selling of the Big Issue, no political activities,
demonstrations and no photography.

Fighting back across the country there are groups of residents involved in
campaigning against new and re-developments of their towns and cities, protecting
what they see as important heritage and traditions.

People are most likely to look after spaces they perceive they have some control
over or are a part of the heritage and traditions of where they live, such as market

Re-imagining the high street 39



72

Box 6: Bringing nature back on to the high street

Edible landscaping. Planting fruit trees and wild spaces to bring natural habits into community spaces.
2009 was about food not flowers as more than a quarter of us experimented with growing our own fruit and vegetables.

Sales of flowers have declined, as sales of vegetable seeds have risen by 128 per cent from last year and ready-to-
plant vegetables by 40 per cent. Sales of greenhouses are up by 157 per cent. Fruit trees are not only an untapped
food source, but can be a way for groups of people to come together to organise urban harvests of fruit trees to pick
fruit for household use and wider distribution, and for young people to learn about growing food.

Trees for Cities92 has been transforming the asphalt spaces around a school in Islington, North London, into outdoor
learning spaces incorporating fruit and nut trees, a woodland, as well as herb and more traditional vegetable beds
that will provide fresh organic produce which the children can take home.

“Vegetable gardens and outdoor classrooms like these engage children with nature and show them how rewarding
it is to spend time outdoors, and they ably demonstrate where food comes from.” 93

places and village greens. Modern physical regeneration projects, such as Liverpool
One, have created large, indiscriminate spaces. These spaces surrounding the
shops they serve are rarely used as individual or communal space.9! Residents are
reduced to being mere consumers.

This is where the idea of the public realm plays such an important role, and why its
erosion has been so socially and environmentally destructive. The public sphere is
where residents learn what a shared, common resource is, and how to look after

it without recourse to the taxes, fines, exemptions, rewards and general outside
management that comes with privatised space.

The Bigger Picture - no blue-print

There is no blue-print which guarantees the delivery of a low carbon future which
supports high levels of well-being for all. nef's experience of delivering action
research projects to support communities to understand their local economies, and
identify new opportunities for local enterprise has shown that initially people feel
unable to effect change in their local economy - the economy is just something
that happens to you. And the sheer scale of the climate change challenge can have
the effect of multiplying this feeling until people feel powerless to change anything.

At nef we believe much can be done to create the policy environment and
support for local action which will move us towards a low carbon future through
experimenting locally, being bold with our vision for transformation, and building on
the assets that already exist within the local area - local people’s attitudes, skills
and knowledge, physical, financial and natural resources.

Our experience of working on local economic development in the UK and
internationally has demonstrated that supporting communities to explore practical
ways they can effect change can be addressed by firstly presenting the issue in
an understandable and engaging format, which then supports the identification of
actions individuals and groups are passionate about taking forward.

Well-being by design

The high street is so familiar that at times it can be difficult to imagine what an
alternative model of a high street could look like. To help communities look at their
high streets in a different way, we asked a number of community groups to use the
Five Ways to Well-being as design criteria for re-developing their high street, and
build a physical model of what that looks like (using easily found objects in the local
area). In identifying possible ideas for action participants are asked to consider how
those ideas help us to live within our environmental limits.

Re-imagining the high street 40



The Five Ways to Well-being shop in Liverpool.

Connect... finding time and the opportunity to connect with people around you

Be Active... physical activity can be encouraged by creating the space for it. This
does not mean just sports facilities, but also green space to walk in, community
allotments, and cycling pathways.

Keep learning... we can keep learning by promoting local history, opening space
for public art, and learning new skills.

Take notice... unusual features will also make people stop and look, be curious.
Give... finding opportunities for people to share, exchange and help one another.94
Initial pilots95 of design workshops based on the Five Ways to Well-being have
demonstrated that activities which can emerge from this process are many and
varied, from locally owned power generation, repair and recycling, reducing car

travel, to local food sourcing, art and entertainment and supporting new local
enterprise and retailing opportunities.

Re-imagining the high street 4



74

Box 7: Designing a new high street

We used this approach to explore ideas with 120 children from Dewsbury as part of a Master planning process of
their high street in 2010. The children, after working with their teacher the previous day to select a one of the Five
Ways to Well-being they were going to explore in groups, they went around their high street to document buildings
and streetscape.

In a workshop session they then were asked to consider what they would want in Dewsbury town centre in 10
years time, and to think about what changes to the local infrastructure would be necessary to develop a greater
sense of well-being in local residents. Some of the ideas which emerged included a talent tower where we could
be the best we could be, a gym for all ages, a museum shop and café, cycle track and a running track, allotments,
sculptures and artists workshops, music venue, fruit trees and a swop shop.

We also worked with residents in Tooting, who used the workshop to re-imagine Tooting high street. Participants
re-designed their high street using the Five ways to well-being and the ideas generated included, a Tooting Eden

project, an outdoor gym, and outdoor cinema, a star gazing space, more people friendly streets and more greenery
and trees.

How well does your high street support your community to live better, use
less and share more?

The Retail Age may be over for our town centres — what we need to do now is
envision a mix of activities for our high streets, shops both interesting, basic,
independent and multiple; community meeting places; studios where things can be
made and painted and written, spaces where art can flourish and where children
can play. Accepting this challenge, nef is launching through this report a new
Re-imagine your high street programme to support communities across the UK to
take action to transform their high streets.96

Re-imagining the high street 42



75

Recommendations

This report contains a range of policy solutions and actions to transform our high streets:

What you can do
Take action

Be Active, Take Notice and Connect with people around you to grow a thriving
town centre for where you live.

Use your independent cinema, local independent retailers and markets.
Independent high street business can only survive if local people buy from them -
seek out independents and locally sourced products.

Join or help to create a local Transition Town group, or civic society.
Get involved in running a local currency

Use FreeCycle to redistribute your unwanted goods and belongings.
Grow more of your own food.

Run (or attend) a re-imagined high street project in your community. People need
to help planners create a re-invigorated community — Government; (central or
local) cannot deliver this alone.

What local government and other public institutions can do

Establish High Street Hubs in key vacant shops to accommodate activities that
help develop local economic sustainability. These could range from local currency
development (like Brixton £) to local food distribution and tool share/exchange
schemes. NB. These are NOT general ‘community centres’.

Sign up to the Sustainable Communities Act
Make residents an equal partner in your Master Planning processes

Design well-being, distinctiveness and sustainability indicators into your Master
Planning processes.

Build in well-being measures in addition to sustainability into your procurement
policies

Support and help grow local Community Land Trusts
Pursue the principles of Shared Space in your public space development

Ensure resident participation in Business Improvement Districts

What national government can do

Roll out the Post Office Bank

Develop a land registry of commercial property so we can understand who owns
our town centres.

Create an Empty Dwellings Management Order instrument for Local authorities to
apply to empty builds to bring them back into active use for public benefit.

Establish a Local Competition Ombudsman as recommended by the Competition
Commission which will reign in the power of the big four grocery chains.

Revising allotment legislation to encourage Local Authorities to provide more
allotments, community gardens, community orchards or market gardens.

Introduce an addition to the small business rate relief giving local authorities
powers to offer discretionary business rate relief for new low carbon businesses
moving on to the high street and to existing small and medium independent
businesses who commit to reducing their carbon use.

Introduce well-being indicators into all Planning Policy statements

Introduce a Green Investment Bank

Re-imagining the high street 43



Clone Town Britain Su 2 nef

Home Town or Clone Town?

The Clone Town Britain Survey |l is designed to determine whether your town has be-
come a Clone Town increasingly indistinguishable from dozens of others around the
country; or whether it survives as a Home Town, distinctive and recognisable as a
unique place.

The Clone Town Britain Survey Il is simple. It should take no more than 30 minutes and
can be completed while strolling along your local high street.

How to do the Survey

1 The route

Start at the place you consider to be the heart of the high street of your town. To do the Survey you simply need to walk
along the high street and record the first 50 shops you pass. Services such as post-offices, banks, benefit offices, job
centres, doctors’ surgeries and public buildings should not be counted. Ideally you should record 50 shops, but certainly no
less than 40 and no more than 60.

2 Filling in the Survey
As you walk along the high street, fill in the form on the reverse side of this page. For each shop, you should note down:

® The type of shop
® Whether the shop is independently owned, or a part of regional, national or international chain.

The ownership of the shops on your high street is crucial to understanding its homeliness or ‘cloneliness’. If you're not sure,
go in and ask one of the staff..

3 The scoring

Once you have filled in the survey for 50 shops on your high street, you are ready to score your town and see whether it is,
oris on its way to becoming, a clone town. This is determined by the number of different types of shops (i.e. diversity), and
the number of chain stores versus independently owned shops (i.e. identity).

Follow the simple steps below to calculate your town’s score:

1. Add together the total number of types of shop on your high street.

2. Add together the total number of independently owned shops on your high street.

3. Multiply the total number of independently owned shops by 75, then divide this by the total number of shops.*

4. Finally, add the total number of types of shop to this calculation. This gives your ‘Clone Town Britain’ score.

Example: ‘Blandton’

A survey of 50 shops carried out on the high street of ‘Blandton’ found 18 different types of shops. It also revealed that, out of
the 50 shops counted, 10 were independently owned and 40 were chains. ‘Blandton’ therefore received the following score:

Clone Town Britain Score = 10 (no of independent stores) x 75 = 750 =15 + 18 (no of types of shop) = 33

50 (number of shops)

With a score of 33 we see that ‘Blandton’ is indeed a Clone Town.

DI ¢ 0w

*multiplying by 75 scales the index allowing us to give a ‘Clone Town Britain’ score between 0 and 100

The Clone Town Britain Index measures both the identity and diversity of outlets on the core of the high street. It weights more for identity
because ownership is critical to the health of the local economy and community. But diversity is important, and so is also included. Towns
scoring below 50 on the scale are classified as Clone Towns. Over half of the stores counted are chains, and there is little diversity. Towns
scoring over 65 are classified as Home Towns, where almost two thirds or more of the stores are independent, and there is a wide range of
outlets. In between are ‘Border Towns, which are neither highly homogenised, nor strongly independent and diverse.



Clone Town Britain Survey Il

Town: Name of high street:
Shop Count
1 Food retailer (butcher, baker, supermarket, etc.)
2 Newsagents/tobacconists
3  Stationery/books
4  Department and catalogue stores
5 Restaurant/takeaway/fast food/coffee shop
6 Pub/bar
7 Off licence
8 Professional (insurance, accountancy, legal, etc.)
9 Estate agents
10 Health care shop/pharmacy
11 Household items (furniture, kitchen, etc.)
12 Clothing retailer (shoes, accessories, etc.)
13 Cinema/theatre
14 Electronic/IT (TVs, phones, computers, etc.)
15 Pet shop/pet supplies/vets
16 Barbers/hair salons/beauticians and cosmetics
17 Toys/sports/cycling/outdoor leisure
18 Mechanics/car accessories/petrol station
19 Music/games/DVD/video (includes rentals)
20 DlIY/builders’ merchant
21 Garden centre/florists
22 Dry cleaning/launderette
23 Travel agents
24 Camera/photo developing shops
25 Post Office (please count a sub post office as independently
owned, and Crown Post Offices as part of a chain)
26 Other (betting shop, casino, taxis, antiques, watch
repairers, charity shop, cobblers, jewellers, etc.)
TOTAL
No. of types of shop
No. of independently Clone Town Britain Score
owned shops
Clpn_e Town _ (no of independent stores x 75) (no of types
Total no. of shops Britain score = (no. of shops) i of shop) =
(Ideally 50, but no less than 40 and no - -
more than 60.)

Clone Town Rating

920 100

o] w] o] o] oS

Clone Town Home Town

Please return completed surveys no later than 31 December 2007 to: Clone Town Britain Survey I,
nef (the new economics foundation), 3 Jonathan Street, London SE11 5NH Fax: 020 7820 6301




/8

Endnotes

16
17
18

19
20
21
22

23

24

25

26

27

Re-imagining the high street

Research by Capital Economics, quoted in The Guardian, ‘Britain’'s meanest high streets’, 22
February 2009, http://www.guardian.co.uk/business/2009/feb/22/retail-credit-crunch-high-street
[accessed 15 April 2009].

Household final consumption expenditure.

Personal care expenditure includes expenditure in hairdressing salons and related electrical
appliances and products, and personal effects includes expenditure such as watches and
jewellery.

ONS Consumer trends Quarter 1, 2010. No. 56.

‘Worried retail staff turning to the bottle’, The Grocer, 21 March 2009; ‘Huge job losses predicted
in retail sector, ‘Huge job losses predicted in the retail sector’, The Telegraph, January 4 2009,
www.telegraph.co.uk/finance/financetopics/recession/4108242/Credit-crunch-Huge-job-losses-
predicted-in-retail-sector.html [accessed 16 July 2010].

Boyle, D, Nissan, S, and Spratt, S (2009) .O.U.K.: Banking failure and how to build a fit financial
sector (London: nef).

The Guardian, 21 July 2010, ‘UK braced for next credit crunch’.
A multiple is defined in the text as having 10 or more branches.
Dawn of a Better Market (2010) The Local Data Company.

http://www.localdatacompany.com/news-and-media/month/august-2010 [accessed August 12,
2010].

Interview with Craig Robertson, Dumfries and Galloway Standard, 1 September 2010.
‘Helping the High street’, Dumfries and Galloway Standard, 20 February 2009, p.11.

Figures for job losses and store closures do not include companies that have gone in to
administration but are still awaiting buyers. Sources: The Guardian, ‘Recession Watch’,
http://www.guardian.co.uk/business/series/recession-watch; Personnel Today, Redundancy Tracker,
http://www.personneltoday.com/articles/2009/04/08/48935/redundancy-tracker-and-uk-job-losses.
html; The Telegraph Online, ‘Financial Crisis: UK Job Losses’, http://www.telegraph.co.uk/finance/
financetopics/financialcrisis/3542572/Financial-crisis-UK-job-losses.html; Thomson Reuters,
‘FACTBOX-Job cuts announced in the UK since September 4 July 2009, http://www.forbes.com/
feeds/ afx/2009/04/07/afx6264777.html [all accessed 14 April 2009].

Quoted in Big-Box Blight: The Spread of Dark Stores, http://bigboxtoolkit.com/images/pdf/
bigboxblight.pdf [accessed 16 July 20109].

In 2009 the US had a reported 14.2 billion square feet of retail space, giving 46.6 square feet of
total retail square feet per capita http://www.icsc.org/ [accessed 11 August 2010].

Mitchell, S, ‘Big, empty boxes’, Minneapolis Star Tribune, January 15 2009.
Ibid., page 107.

‘Britain’'s meanest streets’, The Guardian, http://www.guardian.co.uk/business/2009/feb/22/retail-
credit-crunch-high-street

Sacks, J (2002) The Money Trail, pp129-130, (London, nef).
nef interview with Stacy Mitchell, 24 March 2009.
Sterling University (2010) Retail Diversity (Sterling: Association of Convenience Stores).

British Retail Consortium. Shop vacancies not just about the recession. February 10, 2010
http://www.brc.org.uk/details04.asp?id=1695

Department for Business Innovation and Skills (BIS) (2008) Small and Medium-sized Enterprise
(SME) Statistics for the UK and Regions 2008. Available at: http://stats.bis.gov.uk/ed/sme/

The definition of shops (shop units) includes all retailing and services (e.g. hairdressers, travel
agencies, post-offices, banks, building societies, restaurants).

The Economic Significance of Post Offices Combined with a Village Shop — Final report (2007)
Commission for Rural Communities.

Rural Shops Alliance, quoted in ‘Last orders? Locals fight back’, The Guardian, Money section, p1,
21 March 2009.

British Beer & Pub Association, quoted in The Guardian, ibid.

46



28

29
30

31
32

33

34

35
36
37

38
39
40
4

42
43
44
45
46
47

48
49
50
51

52
53

54
55

56

57

58

59

60
61
62
63
64

65

79

Rubin, G, Jatana, N and Potts, R (2006) The World On a Plate: The economic and social value of
London’s most ethnically diverse street market (London: nef).

See Appendix 1.

Conisbee, M et al (2004) Clown Town Biritain: the loss of local identity on the nation’s high streets.
(London: nef).

‘If town hall planners can’t save Portobello, what are they for?’ 8 July 2010. The Evening Standard.

Academy of Urbanism, The Great Street Award 2009 summary report.
http://www.academyofurbanism.org.uk/ [accessed 12 July 2010].

‘Shopkeepers urged: Stop high street cloning’ The Evening Standard, 26 November 2007
http://www.thisislondon.co.uk/standard/article-23423050-details/Shopkeepers+urged%3A+Stop+
high-+street+cloning/article.do

‘How Failed Shops Can find new lease of life’, Cambridge News Online, http://www.cambridge-
news.co.uk/cn_news_royston/displayarticle.asp?id=396216 [accessed 9 April 2009].

http://www.grandarcade.co.uk/ [accessed 9 April 2009].
http://www.cambridge-news.co.uk/cn_news_home/displayarticle.asp?id=459361

‘Help Tenants’, Cambridge News Online, http://www.cambridge-news.co.uk/cn_news_letters/
displayarticle.asp?id=399276

nef interview with Vanessa Dowell, 23 March 2009.

Previously called ‘New Heart for Shirley’ scheme.

http://www.parkgateshirley.com/ [accessed 9 July 2010].

http://www.parkgateshirley.com/ [accessed July 9, 2010].
http://www.parkgateshirley.com/asda/ [accessed 14 July 2010].

http://keepshirleyalive.org.uk/ [accessed 9 July, 2010].
http://www.princesshay.com/community/Keyfacts/index.aspx [accessed 9 July, 2010].
http://www.localworks.org/ [accessed 9 July 2010].

For a full listing see http://www.handsoffourharbour.co.uk/strategy.html {accessed 9 July 2010].

‘Launch of new Tesco is delayed by months’ 29 August 2008
http://www.thisisexeter.co.uk/news/ [accessed 12 July 2010].

http://sustainablecrediton.org.uk/ [accessed 12 July 2010].

nef interview, 11 March 2009.

http://www.skiptononline.co.uk/page1.asp?iSec=BID [accessed 9 July 2010].

See www.brentfordhighstreet.org.uk

See http://www.coactivate.org/projects/brentfordhighstreet/project-home [accessed 9 July 2010].

http://www.coactivate.org/projects/brentfordhighstreet/latest-update-from-andrew-dakers
[accessed 9 July 2010].

http://www.fsb.org.uk/keeptradelocal [accessed 9 July 2010].

http://www.thisislondon.co.uk/standard/article-23411591-save-our-small-shops.do [accessed 9 July
2010].

http://www.camra.org.uk/ [accessed 12 July 2010].

‘Axing market will rip the guts out of Brixton’, The Evening Standard, March 13 2009
http://www.thisislondon.co.uk/standard/article-23661883-details/Axing+market+'will+rip+the+guts
+out+of+Brixton'/article.do?expand=true

‘Traders win battle to save Brixton Market’, The Evening Standard, March 16 2009
http://www.thisislondon.co.uk/standard/article-23662496-details/Traders+win+battle+to-+save+Brix
ton+Market/article.do

http://www.thisisplymouth.co.uk/regionalbusiness/Stores-lie-8211-traders-fight-recession-s-
effectsarticle-614909-details/article.html

http://www.haslemere.com/rewards/index.php [accessed 16 April 2009].
http://totnes.transitionnetwork.org/totnespound/home [accessed 16 April 2009].
‘Last orders? Locals fight back’, The Guardian, Money section, p1, 21 March 2009.
http://www.hebdenbridgetownhall.org.uk/

Adapted from ‘Last orders? Locals fight back’, The Guardian, Money section, p6, 21 March 2009.
http://www.tewinvillage.co.uk/

BizFizz is one of nef's programmes to support enterprise in areas experiencing economic
disadvantage. www.bizfizz.org.uk

Re-imagining the high street 47



66
67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74
75

76

77

78

79
80

81

82

83

84
85
86
87
88

89

90

91

92
93

94
95

96

80

Sustainable Communities Act 2007: A Guide (2008). Available at http://www.communities.gov.uk

The Sustainable Communities Act — a 2 page guide (London: Local Works). Available at
http://www.localworks.org

The act also included new powers for the now soon to be defunct Audit Commission (in England)
and the Auditor General for Wales (in Wales) to appoint auditors to certain entities and provide
power for the auditor to report ‘public interest'.

Living working countryside: The Taylor Review of Rural Economy & Affordable Housing (2008).
See also http://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/uknews/2276813/Out-of-town-supermarkets-that-harm-
High-Streets-to-be-blocked.html

Simms, A (2008) Nine Meals from Anarchy — Oil dependence, climate change and the transition to
resilience. Schumacher Lecture 2008. (London: nef).

Minton, A (2009) Ground Control, p.198 (London: Penguin Books).

The ecological footprint measures how much biologically productive land and water an individual,
population or activity requires to produce all the renewable resources it consumes and to absorb
the waste it generates.

ombined sources: Simms A et al (2009) The Consumption Explosion: The third UK
Interdependence Report (London: nef); REAP (Resources and Energy Analysis Programme)
http://www.resource-acounting.org.uk; and BioRegional, http://www.bioregional.com/

These figures however do not reflect the disparities of resource use within countries.

Data source REAP http://www.resource-accounting.org.uk/

To read more on this topic see Jackson, T (2009) Prosperity without growth: economics for a finite
planet. (London: Earthscan).

Adger, N, Brooks, N, Bentham, G, Agnew, M and Eriksen, S (2004) ‘New indicators for vulnerability
and adaptive capacity’, Technical Report 7 (Norwich: Tyndall Centre for Climate Change Research).

Aked, J, Michaelson, J, Steuer, N (2010) Good Foundations: towards a low carbon, high well-
being built environment. (London: nef).

Chu, A, Thorne, A, Guite, H (2004) ‘The impact on mental well-being of the urban and physical
environment: an assessment of the evidence' Journal of Mental Health Promotion 3: 17-32.

Shah, H & Peck, J (2005) Well-being and the Environment (London: nef).

Dines, N et. al. (2006) Public spaces, social relations and well-being in East London, (London:
Joseph Rowntree Foundation).

Kuo, F (2001) ‘Coping with poverty: impacts of environment and attention in the inner city’
Environment and Behaviour 33: 5-34.

Ulrich, RS (1984) ‘View through a window may influence recovery from surgery’ Science, 224
42-421.

Ulrich, RS, Simons, RF, Losito, BD, Fiorito, E, Miles, MA, & Zelson, M (1991) ‘Stress recovery during
exposure to natural and urban environments’ Journal of Environmental Psychology, 11: 201-230.

ONS - Time Use Survey (2005).
http://www.transitiontowns.org/
nef interview, February 2010.
www.thelewespound.org

Anable, J & Gatersleben. B (2005) ‘All work and no play? The role of instrumental and affective
factors in work and leisure journeys by different travel modes’ Transportation Research Part A
39:163-181.

www.architectureweek.com/2004/0505/building_1-2.html

http://www.carbontrust.co.uk/emerging-technologies/current-focus-areas/buildings/pages/
buildings.aspx [accessed 10 February 2010].

Beer, AR & Jorgensen, A (2004) New Approaches in Europe. Decent Homes, Decent Places.
Improving the green spaces for social housing, pp14—-16 (London: Peabody Trust).

To find out more see http://www.treesforcities.org/

http://www.hortweek.com/channel/Arboriculture/article/1008993/Trees-Cities-builds-Chris-Collins-
Jamie-Oliver-backed-Trees-Food-Islington-schools-project/ [accessed 19 July 2010].

Aked, J, Michaelson, J, and Steuer, N (2010) op cit.

Initial pilots have been help as part of a nef event the Bigger Picture held in October 2009, in
Dewsbury as part of a master planning process, and with Transition Town Tooting.

www.reimaginyourhighstreet.org

Re-imagining the high street 48



81
About the Connected Economies team

Connected economies

Working with people to support practical local action for a just
and sustainable future.

nef is working with people in In partnership with residents, local
communities in the UK and entrepreneurs and other stakeholders
internationally to support practical local we:

action for a more sustainable and just

future. ® develop and support delivery of

new models of local economic

We believe that enterprise and co-
operation should be at the heart
of all regeneration projects. Our

development and enterprise
support;

action research programmes seek ® help people to reinvent their
ways to support practical change in own economies, re-imagine their
communities and influence local and high streets and design their
national policy to create low carbon neighbourhoods;

economies which support high levels

of well-being for all. ® support increased understanding

of economic, cultural and
ecological interconnections that
link communities, span the globe
and impact on the future;

® support local authorities, NHS
bodies and other statutory
providers to procure and
commission goods and services
to create greater public benefit.



82

economics
W eal wealth

Written by: Elizabeth Cox, Paul Squires, Josh Ryan-Collins and Ruth Potts
Additional research by: Alban Thurston.

Edited by: Lindsey Mackie and Corrina Cordon

Design by: the Argument by Design — www.tabd.co.uk

Cover image: davepatten via Flickr

Special thanks to: the many people who helped with the Clone Town Surveys and
Alban Thurston for his generous contribution of research time.

This report was produced with the support of The Sheepdrove Trust.

new economics foundation
3 Jonathan Street

London SE11 5NH

United Kingdom

Telephone: +44 (0)20 7820 6300

Facsimile: +44 (0)20 7820 6301 Registered charity number 1055254

- ) © September 2010 nef (the new economics foundation)
E-mail: info@neweconomics.org

Website: www.neweconomics.org ISBN 978 190488282 4



83

Briefing Note for Overview & Scrutiny Committee on Potential for
Saturation Policies in respect of licensed betting shops

The Licensing Act 2003 & Saturation Policies

e The concept of ‘saturation’ or ‘cumulative impact’ policies originates
from the licensing regime for alcohol, regulated entertainment and late
night refreshment under the Licensing Act 2003;

e Saturation policies are not mentioned in the 2003 Act itself, but are
referenced within the Guidance for local licensing authorities issued by
the Home Office (initially Department for Culture Media and Sport). The
Guidance cites saturation policies as a means of dealing with the
cumulative impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives of a
significant number of licensed premises operating in a defined area.
The relevant licensing objectives here being the prevention of crime
and disorder and the prevention of nuisance;

e Saturation policies have the effect of reversing the ‘presumption to
grant’ embedded in the Act to a ‘rebuttable presumption to refuse’;

e While this does not enable the licensing authority to refuse every
application without consideration, it does require each applicant to
demonstrate to the licensing authority how he / she can ensure that the
addition of their premises, if licensed, will not add to the identified
impacts on the licensing objectives in the local area.

e Irrespective of this, under the rules of natural justice, licensing
authorities must continue to consider each application on its own merits
with all relevant matters taken into account;

e It should also be noted that saturation policies do not capture
temporary event notifications (TENs) enabling one-off or irregular
events to take place, even within saturation areas;

e Saturation policies must have an evidence base. That evidence base
must be demonstrated and published as part of the public consultation
process that precedes approval of a policy;

e This authority has three (alcohol licensing) saturation policies in place.
The evidence for these has been obtained by way of the partnership
analysis of alcohol related violence; crime and disorder; and
ambulance pick-ups; plus information on nuisance calls made to the
council. This analysis is reported to the council’s licensing committee
on an annual basis.

The Gambling Act 2005 & Saturation Policies

e The Gambling Act 2005 provides the legal basis for the licensing
regime for betting, gaming and lotteries;

e While the 2005 Act is based on the 2003 Act, neither the Act nor the
Guidance for local licensing authorities (this time issued by the
Gambling Commission) contain any mention of cumulative impact;



84

This, plus the fact that the Act is a permissive Act (licensing authorities
are directed to ‘aim to permit’ gambling) has led to the common view
that saturation policies may not be enacted;

However, this authority has recently obtained counsel opinion which
suggests that this may not be the case. The opinion obtained takes the
view that while the Act / Guidance may not make provision for
saturation policies, the fact that they are not precluded by either,
means that potentially such policy could be made. Opinion suggests
that if saturation policies for betting shops were to be considered the
process set out in the 2003 Act should be followed;

If this view is to be accepted, then the practical problem in establishing
saturation policies for betting shops comes in attempting to compile a
reliable evidence base that properly demonstrates the cumulative
impact of premises on the licensing objectives in the local area under
consideration. The necessary data sets which might demonstrate the
impact at a local level under this law are not readily available. The
2005 Act contains different licensing objectives to the 2003 Act. Here
the most relevant objectives would be protecting children (and in
particular) vulnerable people from being harmed or exploited by
gambling and preventing gambling from ... being associated with crime
and disorder;

So, in summary, saturation policies may be possible, but further work
needs to be carried out before any licensing authority might be in a
position to propose a local policy. Much of this work is likely to revolve
around local levels of gambling addiction and debt. Further work is
underway, however, as follows:

London Health Improvement Network’s (LHIN) Healthier High Streets Working

Group

The LHIN has established the Healthier High Streets Working Group to
look into a range of issues including the proliferation on the high street
of fast food outlets, betting shops and payday loan shops;

The Group meets at Southwark’s offices and has sought advice on the
law around betting shops from Southwark’s licensing team;

Aware of the opinion obtained by this authority, the Working Group has
commissioned a piece of work from The Outcomes Group looking into
the potential for saturation policies to deal with betting shops. The
intention is to research and prepare a framework for assessing local
impact on the licensing objectives that can be picked up and used by
any interested licensing authority. The work has only just commenced.
A full report on the situation is anticipated in June 2013;

The outcome of this work is awaited with interest by this authority and
many others.

Richard Parkins
Health Safety Licensing & Environmental Protection Unit Manager
22 April 2013



85

This is a small sample of the numerous people who have sought the
Southwark CAB’s advice in recent months. Clients have taken out payday
loans through shops in Southwark and also on line.

1.

The client is a single mother with 7 year child. She was made redundant in
November. She has had rent, and council tax arrears for some years and took
out various unsecured debts, including from three major banks and Provident.
Last year she also took out loans from three pay day loan companies.

The client says that Pay Day loans are really difficult to clear once she has
missed a payment especially as she how has no income apart from benefits. The
client has opened a Credit Union account into which benefits, including housing
benefit, are now to be paid.

The CAB is building up a full picture of all her debts, and is in process of setting
out her options, which may include a Debt Relief Order, Bankruptcy or freezing
interest on her pay day loans and other non -priority loans and negotiating a
token offer on these debts.

The client is over 70, and is a single person on pension credit. He took out a
£100 pay day loan, repaid it and this was confirmed by the company. The
company took out over £100 from his bank account some weeks later. This
meant that he had no money at all for living costs. He went to the company’s
shop who insisted that he owed the money.

He came to the CAB to try to resolve the problem. We gave him a Food Bank
voucher for his emergency needs. The company refused to accept a written
complaint and insisted that he had to go to the shop again to register his
complaint even though it was some miles from his home.

The client is a single parent with a 4year old child and has learning disabilities.
She is in receipt of benefits and had no money to feed her child because she is
struggling to with over £2,000 debts. She recently tried to take out a Payday loan
through Loans Direct to help pay off her debts. The company charged a £60
administration fee, even though no loan was made and it was clear the client had
learning disabilities.

The CAB debt team explained that she was eligible for a Debt Relief Order and
were able to claim back the administration fee.



86

. The client’s debts exceed £15,000. He received a notice for payday loan debt
collection from Albermarle& Bond for £883, seeking to take the money owed from
his wages. He had only eight days to respond to the letter, was away during that
time, and so was not able to respond. Albermarle and Bond is a pawnbroker with
hundreds of shops in UK and has recently diversified into payday loans.

The CAB advised the client to go to Lambeth County Court to complete the
Court’s income and expenditure form and to pursue a set aside order.

. The client is a single parent with three school age children. She works part time
earning £850 per month, and has used pay day loans for over 2 years to help to
pay her essential bills. Interest changes can be as much as £500 in a single
month.

. The client is from Eastern Europe having settled in UK six years ago. She is
being treated for alcoholism. Her sister asked the CAB to help her deal with over
£1,000 owed to the Payday company, Pounds to Pocket, an online payday loan
business owed by an American business.

. The client is a single parent with two school age children. She works part-time
earning £800 per month as a care worker. She had no earnings for a month
while her patient was away from home. She had just moved into a Housing Assn
flat and had so use all her limited savings for essential furnishings. Her debts and
arrears total £1600, including a £800 payday loan with interest. She did not have
any money at all, Child Benefit and Working Tax Credit was not due for at least
two weeks, and needed money to buy basic household essentials and food, as
well as her children returning to school which required assistance.

The CAB organised a voucher for three days basic food from Pecan food bank
and advised on how to apply for a crisis loan from Job Centre plus. The client
was also advised on how to negotiate a repayment plan for her loans and
arrears.

. The client is a single parent with two school age children. She works part time
and earns under £1,000 per month. She is in arrears with rent, court action has
commenced and has 7pay day loans. Total debts are c£7,000. She is being
helped by the CAB debt adviser.

. The client is a full time carer for his partner, does not work and is a Southwark
council tenant. Due to relationship problems he has had difficulties managing his
money. His bank appointed a debt collector for an overdraft. He needed money
and so took out a Pay day loan which he could not pay back. CAB advised client
how to negotiate with both lenders



87

10. The client works part time. His hours and hence his income varies, averaging
£900 per month. He has a gambling problem. He owes £1,250 through various
Payday loans and another £1,200 in rent and Council tax arrears. His partner is
expecting a baby.

The CAB advised him on how to get the payday loans put on hold, and work out
payment schedule for all his debts.



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN)

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2012-13

NOTE: Original held by Scrutiny Team; all amendments/queries to Peter Roberts Tel: 020 7525 4350

Name

OSC Members

Councillor Catherine Bowman (Chair)
Councillor Dan Garfield (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Neil Coyle

Councillor Toby Eckersley

Councillor Gavin Edwards

Councillor David Hubber

Councillor Lorraine Lauder
Councillor David Noakes

Councillor Paul Noblet

Councillor Right Revd Emmanuel Oyewole
Councillor Mark Williams

Reserves

Councillor Kevin Ahern
Councillor James Barber
Councillor Nick Dolezal
Councillor Rebecca Lury
Councillor Tim McNally
Councillor Abdul Mohamed
Councillor Lisa Rajan
Councillor Lewis Robinson
Councillor Martin Seaton
Councillor Cleo Soanes
Councillor Geoffrey Thornton

Education Representatives on OSC

Revd Nicholas Elder
Colin Elliott
Leticia Ojeda

Co-opted Members
Jeremy Leach, Walworth Society
Cabinet Members

Councillor Peter John (Council Leader)
Councillor lan Wingfield (Deputy Leader)
Councillor Claire Hickson

Councillor Richard Livingstone
Councillor Veronica Ward

No of
copies

RS L NG (UL UL (UL U (L I L (I §

R L G UL I UL UL (UL (I WL (I §

_ A A A

Name

Other Members [on request]
Councillor Anood Al-Samerai
Council Officers

Eleanor Kelly, Chief Executive
Shelley Burke, Head of Overview &
Scrutiny

Norman Coombe, Legal Services
lan Millichap, Constitutional Team
Manager

Chris Page, Principal Cabinet Assistant
Alex Doel, Labour Political Assistant
William Summers, Liberal Democrat
Political Assistant

Scrutiny Team SPARES

Total:

Dated: April 2013

No of

copies

10

50




	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Gateway to Peckham - Public square and station regeneration
	Gateway to Peckham Report
	Gateway to Peckham appendix 1
	Cabinet Minutes 16.04.2013

	6 Business Mix on Walworth Road
	NEF Briefing Reimagining the High Street
	Briefing Note Potential for Saturation Policies in Respect of Licensed Betting Shops
	CAB Briefing Payday Loan Case Studies

	

